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Amy 5. Lemer, Board Sesretary

Avon Board of Education ’ Schoot Business Administrator
505 Lincoin Avenue ' (732) T75-4310, ext. 201
Avon-by-the-Sea, New Jersey (7717 Fax (732) 776-0761

amy_lermerBavonsachool.com

February 23, 2022

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
~ Avon-By-The-Sea School District
Lincoln & 5™ Avenues
Avon-By-The- Sea, NJ 07717

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Avon-By-The-Sea School District (“District”) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, is hereby subrmitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and complefeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Avon-By-The-Sea Board
of Education (“Board”). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all
material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the varfous funds and account groups of the Disirict. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included,

The Com prehensive Annual Financial Repart is presented in four sections: infroductory, financial, statistical and single
andit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart, a roster of principal
officials and a list of consultants and advisors, The financial section includes the district-wide and fund financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The
statistical section includes selected financial statements and schedules as well as information generaily presented on
a multi-year basis. The District is required o undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act Amendments, OMB Circular Uniform Guidance and the New forsey OMB Circular15-08, “Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, Stute Grants, and State Aid *. Information related to this audit,
including the auditor’s repert on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

Respecifully submitted,
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INDEPENDBENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Edocation
Avon-By-The-Sea Board of Education
Connty of Monmouth, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of the governmential activities, the buslness-type activities, each major
fund, and the agpgregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Avon-By-The-Sea School District (the
“Drstriet”) in the County of Monmouth, as of and for the fiscal year ended Jung 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statemnents, which collectively comprise the Distriet’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Manageamens is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, snd maintenance ofinternal
control relevant (o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or etror.

Auditor®s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expregs opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Unfied States, and sudit requirements as prescribed
by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jorsey. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the District®s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by macagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bagis for cur audit opinfons,
Opinjons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, gach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board
of Rducation of the Avon-By-The-Sea Schoo! District, in the County of Menmouth, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in aceordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Emphasis of Matter
Change In Accounting Principle

As discussed i Note 1 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the District adopted GASB Statement
No, 84, Fiduciary Activities, Our opinion is not modified with respect fo this matter,

Other Matters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis,
budgetary comparison information, pension and other post-employment benefit information as listed in the table of contents be
prasented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financia! statements, is
required by the Governmentai Accounting Standards Board whe considers i to be an essential part of Enancial reporting for placing
the bagic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial stafements. We do nof express an opinion or provide uny assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence fo express an opinion or provide any
A8/UrANCE,

Other Information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financlal statements that collectively comprise the Distriet's
basic financial statements, The accompatiying supplementary information such as the combining and individual non-major fund
financial statements and the accompanying schedutes of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Ragulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requivements, Cost Frinciples, and Audlt Requirements for Federal Awards
{Uniform Guidanee}, and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as reqaired by New Jersey OMB Clreular 15-08,
“Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Granis, State Grants and State Aid”, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary schedules such as the cotnbining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the respensibility of management and were derived
from and relates directly o the underlying accoumnting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such
information has been subjected {0 the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or 1o the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, Tn our opinion, the supplementary schedules and the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole,

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the tabla of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance cn it.

Oiher Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordence with Government Auditing Stondards, we have also issued our report dated February 23, 2022 on our consideration
of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on ocur tests of its compliance with centain provisions of laws,
regulations, eontracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal controf over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
confrol ever financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Distriet’s infernal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(Wi ALl

Allen B, Shechter
Licensed Public Schoo! Accountant No, 2183
Certified Public Accountant

February 23, 2022
Neptune, Now Jersey
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AYON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
AVON-BY-THE-SEA, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of the Avon-By-The-Sea School District’s financial performance provides an overall
review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, The intent of this discussion
and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes
to the basi¢ financial statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the School District’s
financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2021 are as follows;

* General revenues accounted for $5,721,941.51 inrevenue or 95.89% of all revenues. Program specific revenues
in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions
accounted for $245,509.80 or 4.11% of total revenues of $5,967.451.31.

* Total net position of governmental activities increased by $239,703.18.

* The School District had $5,727,748.13 in expenses; only $245,502.80 of these expenses were offset by program
specific charges for services, grants ot contributions. General revenues (primarily property taxes) of
$5,521,941.51 were adequate to provide for these programs,

* The General Fund had $4,917,168.09 in revenues and $4,765,778.74 in expenditures and transfers, The General
Fund’s balance increased $151,389.35 over 2020,

Using this Comprehensive Annual Finaneial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements, These statements are
organized so the reader can understand the Avon-By-The-Sea School District as a financial whole, an entire operating
entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at the specific financiai activities.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole
School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District’s finances and a longer-terim view of those
finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail, For governmental funds, these statements tell how
services were financed in the short-ferm as well as what remains for future spending. In the case of Avon-By-The-Sea
School District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds by the School District to provide programs and activities, the
view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial trassactions and asks the guestion, “How did we do
financially during 20219 The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question,
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the acerval basis of accounting similar to the accounting used
by most private-sector companies. This bagis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and
expenses regardiess of when cash is received or paid.



These two statements report the School District’s net position and changes in those positions, This change in net
position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial positions of the
School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some
financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the Schoo! District’s property tax base, current laws in New
Jersoy restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors,

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two distinet kinds
of activities:

Governmental Activities - All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here including, but not
limited to, instroction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilitics, pupil transportation and
extracurricular activities,

Business-Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all the
expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund is repotied as a business activity.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District’s major (all} funds is included in the 2020-21 Comprehensive Annuat Financial
Report as presented by the School District. Pund financial reports provide detailed information about the School
District’s major funds, The School District uses many funds 1o account for a multitude of financial transactions.
However, these fund financial statements focus on the School District’s most significant funds, The School District’s
major governmettal funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Capital Projects Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of
those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds are reported using
an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School
District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information heips you
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near fitture to finance educational
programs, The relationship (or differences) betweon governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enferprise Fand

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these statements are
essentially the same.



The School Bistrict as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Table 1 provides a summary
of the School Distriet’s net position as of June 30, 2021 compared to June 30, 2020,

Table 1
Net Position
2021 2020
Assets
Current ang Other Assets 1,387,071.35 1,428,693.78
Capital Assets 6,351.201,25 6,511,329,50
Total Assets $7.938.272.60 $7.940,023.28
Deterred Outilows of Resources $_275.005.11 §_344.932.18
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 354,864.28 353,513.99
Long-Term Liabilities 5.069,772.09 5.459.828.61
Total Liabilities $5,454.636.37 $5.813.342.60
Deferred Inflows of Resources $_241,771,00 $__212,026.00

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

1,569,797.15

1,498,861.92

Restricted 1,153,879.79 1,085,938.63
Unrestricted {206,806.60) £325.213.69)
Total Net Position $2.516,870.34 $2§5935 86.86

Table 2 provides a comparison analysis of District-Wide changes in net position from fiscal years 2021 and 2020.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
2021 2020
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charge for Services 143,436.80 106,399.32
Operating Grants and Contributions 102,073.00 73,642.35
General Revenues;
Property Taxes 4,189,878.00 4,031,101.00
State Aid not Restricted 1,499,399.70 1,129,928.32
Other 32.663.81 19,786.39
Total Revenues $5.967.451.31 5.360.857.38
Program Expenses
Instruction 2,674,315.36 241145576
Support Services:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 1,907,896.82 1,928,496.50
General Administration, School
Administration, Ceniral Services 341,323.70 309,662.60
Operations and Mainitenance of Facilities 235,304.82 240,632.39
Pupil Transportation 19%,891.77 2i2,419.23
Interest on Long-Term Debt and Other Charges 17707647 187.327.10
Unatlocated Depreciation 169,941.45 169,772.11
Food Service 2299774 22,892 .52
Total Expenses $5.727.748.13 5482.658.82
Increase/{Decrease) in Net Position $_239.703.18 $.(121.801.44)



Governmental Activitics

Property taxes made up 70.37% of revenues for governmental activities for the Avon-By-The-Sea School District for
the fiscal year 2021, The School District’s total revenues wore $5,953,646.34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,
Federal, state and local grants accounted for another 26.71% of revenues. '

The total cost of all programs and services was $5,704,750.39. Instruction comprises 47.29% of School District
EXPEenses,

Revenues for the School District’s business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal and state reimbursements. This deficit was made up by transfers from the General Fund,

* Food service expenses exceeded revenues by $9,238,19.

* Charges for services represent $2,780,80 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by patrons for daily
food services.

* Federal and state roimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches was
$10,978.75.

The Statement of Activities reflects the cost of program services and program revenues, consisting of the charges for
services and sales and grants and contributions, offseiting those services. Table 3, indicates the total cost of services
and the net cost of services. It identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenues and unrestricted state
entitlements,

Table 3

Governmental Activities

2021 2020
Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services
Jastruction 2,674,315.36  2,458,172.11 2411,455.76  2,260,841.99
Support Services:
Pupil and Instructional Statf 1,907,896.82  1,892,735.82 1,928,496.50 1.912,386.55
General Administration, School
Administration, Central Services 341,323.70 341,323,770 309,662.60 309,662,60
Operation and Maintenance of
Facilities 235,304.82 235,304.82  240,632.39 240,632.39
Pupil Transportation 198.891,77 198,445.77 212,419.23 211,659.23
Interest on Long-Term Debt 171,076.47 177.076.47 187,327.70 187,327.70
Unallocated Depreciation 169.941.45 16904145 _169.772.11 16977211
Total Expenses $5,704.750.39  $5,473,000.14 $5,459,766.29 $5.292.782.57

- Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction between teacher
and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and process of teaching
to students, including curriculum and staft’ development.

General administration, school administration and central services include expenses associated with administrative and
financial supervision of the School District.
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Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and equipment in an
effective working condition.

Curriculuim and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research, development and evaluation of
support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public,

Pupil fransportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well as to and
from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School District which are
designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or a combination of these
for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and other charges involve the fransactions associated with the payment of interest and other related charges
to debt of the School District including the costs associated with the issuance of bonds,

The School District’s Funds

Information about the School District’s major funds s included inthe 2020-21 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
as prosented by the School District. These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
All governmental funds (i.e. General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund
presented in the fund-based statements) had total revenues of $5,417,011.34 and expenditures of $5,263,268.42 and
net other financing uses of $9,192.77, The net change in fund balance for the year in the General Fund, was an increase
of $144,550.15. The School District is able to meet current operating costs with no urgent need for additional funds,

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the Scheol
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedule presents a
summary of the revenues of the governmental funds {excluding capiial projects) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2021,
and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation fo prior-year revenues,

Increase/ Percent of

Percent (Decrease) Increase/

Revenne Amount of Total from 2019720 {Decrease)
Local Sources 4,363,152.39 80.55% 214,677.26 5.17%
State Sources 962,764.70 17.77% 115,990.38 13.70%
Federal Sources 41.094.25 1.68% 21.830.53 31.52%
Total $5.417.011.34 100.00% 352.498.17 6.96%

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to an increase in the local tax levy.
The increase in State Sources is attributed to an increase in on-behalf payments.

The increase in Federal Sources is due to a an increase in the Federal Aid,
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The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,

Increase/ Percent of

Percent {Decrease) Increase/

Expenditures Amount of Total from 2019/20 {Decrease)
Curreni:

Instruction 1,816,565.53 34.51% 61,243.77 3.49%

Undistributed Expenditures 3,023,594,79 57.45% (41,051.55) {1.34%)

Debt Service 408,573.70 7.76% (1,001.23) (.24%)

Capital Outlay 14.534.40 28% 4.280,42 41.74%

Total $5,263,268.42 100.00% 2347141 A5%

The increase in Current - Instruction is attributed to an increase in purchased professional education services and
supplies,

The decrease in Current - Undistributed Expenditures is attributed 1o a decrease in tuition cosis,
The decrease in debt service is attributed to the decrease in interest expense,

The increase in Capital Outlay is attributed to increased capital purchases,

General Fund Badgeting Highlights

The School District’s budget is prepared according to the New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for cestain
transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting, The most significant budgeted fund is the
General Fund,

During the course of the fiscal 2021 year, the School District amended its General Fund budget as needed. The School
District uses program-based budgeting and the budgeting systems designed to tightly eontrol total program budgets but
provide flexibility for program management.

*  Staffing changes based on student needs.

* Additional costs for student transportation both in regular education and special education.
* Accounting changes in maintenance and operations.

* Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns,

While the School Distriet’s final budget for the General Fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures would roughly
equal, the actual results for the year show a $151,220.35 increase in surplus funds for a total unassigned free balance
of $313,881.00 at June 30, 2021,

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal 2021 year, the School District had $6,344,797.15 invested in land, site improvements, building
and building improvements, and machinery and equipment, net of depreciation,

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) af June 30,2021 and 2020
2021 2020
Land 8,800.00 $,800.00
Construction in Progress 14,480.40 00
Site Improvements 63,432.02 67,722.02
Buyildings and Improvements 6,169,611.11 6,319,34]1.48
Licensed Vehicles 00 00
Machinery and Equipment 88.473.62 115,466,00
Totals $6,344.797.15 $6,511.329 50
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Debt Administration

At June 30, 2021, the School District had $5,339,772.09 as outstanding debt. Of this amount, $51,078.89 is for
Compensated Absences and $4,775,000,00 is for general obligation bonds, $134,864.20 is for wnamortized bond
preminms and $378,829.00 is for net pension liability.

At June 30, 2021, the School District’s overall legal debt margin was $28,683,986.00.
For the Futare

The goal of the Avon-By-The-Sea School District is to provide a comprehensive educational program that meets the
needs of all students, Inherent in this goal is the District’s determination to provide safe and adequate facilities that
contribute to the District’s ability to meet its educational goals,

There is concern for the future as rising special education costs, new funding formulas, technology needs, and New
Jersey Common Core Curricular State Standards place increasing demands on limited financial resources.

The uncertainly of state aid and levy cap restrictions continue to present new challenges for the Avon-By-The-Sea
School District as the budget for the 2022/23 school year is developed. The Avon-By-The-Sea School District will
continue to maintain sound fiscal management, while continuously improving the existing program and addressing
safety, security and facility needs.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general overview of
the Schoot District’s finances and to show the School District’s aceountability for the money it receives, If yvou have

any questions about this report or need additional information, please contact the School Business Administrator/Board
Secretary at Avon-By-The-Sea Board of Education, Lincoln & 5™ Avenues, Avon-By-The-Sea, NJ 07717.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the doubling-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.




AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021
Governmental
Activitieg
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 533,920,135
Receivables, Net 444 017,75
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 601,940.45
Capital Assets, Net (Note 5) 6,344.797.15
Total Assets 7.924.675.50
DEFERRED QOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt 169,906.11
Deferred Outflows Related fo Pensions {(Note 11) 105,099.00
Total Deferred Ouiflows of Resources 275.005.11
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 23,973.44
Accrued Interest 70,572.90
Unearned Revenue 6,768.39
Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 6):
Pue Within One Year 240,000.00
Due Beyond One Year 5.099.772.09
Total Liabilities 5.441,086,82
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (Note 11) 241,771.00

NET POSITION:

Invested in Capital Assets, Not of Related Debt
Restricted for:

Excess Surplus

Capital Reserve

Tuition Reserve

Debt Service

Unemployment Compensation
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

1,569,797.15

551,757.91
469,651.31
114,676.00
181.43
17,613.14

206.854.15
$2.516,822.79

Business-Type

Exhibit A-1

Activities Total
588143 539,801.58
1,311.57 44532632

RES] 601,940.45
6.404,10 6,351.201,28
13,5397.10 7.938.272.60
A0 16%,506,11

. 00 105,099.00
.00 275.005.11
13,549.55 37,522.59
OO 70,572.90

00 6,768.39

00 2410,000.00

00 3,099 772.09
13.549,55 5,454.636.37
00 ~241,771,00
R 1,569,797.15

.00 551,757.91

RiH 469,651.31

00 114,676.00

00 18143

L0 17,613.14
47.55 (206,806.6(0)
47,33 251687034

p— e

The accompanying Notes {o Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit A2
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2021

ST

Net (Expense}
Revenue and Changes
FProgram Revenyes In Net Position
Indirect Operating Capital
Expense Charges for Grants & Grants &  Goveramental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Allecation Services Contributions Contributions _ Activities Activities Total
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Tnstruction:
Regular Instruction 1,349,186.82 §70,127.75 140.210.00  75,933.25 00 {1.803,171.32) 00 {1,803,171.32
Special Education Instraction 379,32936 193,329.59 .00 80 Rilt (572,658.93) 00 {372,658.95)
Other Instruction 81.65%.35 £42.49 00 L0 A0 ($2.341.84) 00 (82,341 84)
Suppart Services:
Tuition 964,656.36 00 00 00 o0 (964,636.36) 06 (964,656.36)
Stadent & Instruction Related Services 649,5535.91 293,686.3% L0 13,161.00 K] {928,079.46% 00 (928,075.46}
(General Administration 229,135.38 50,340.91 00 00 L0 {279,646.49) REH {279,656.49)
School Administrative Services 12,813.43 417.21 Rey 00 00 {13,230.64) 0 (13,230.64)
Central Services 46.878.00 1,318.57 00 ¢ G0 (48,396.57) 00 {48,396.5T)
Plant Operations and Maintenance 229,758.80 5,546.02 00 £0 L (235,304,823 00 (235,304.82)
Pupil Transporiation 197,502.68 1.389.09 446.00 b0 00 {198,445.77) A6 {198,445.77)
Unallocated Employee Benefits 1,213,554.46 {1,213,594.45) 06 00 O gL4] 06 {.00)
Interest on Long-Term Debst and
Other Charges 177,076.47 i 00 00 B0 (177,076.47) 00 {(177,076.47
Unallocated Depreciation 173.54317 (3.603.7%) .0g 00 00 (169.941.45) Ae {169.941 45}
Total Governmental Activities $5.704.750.39 .00 14065600 9109495 00 (347300014} 00 (547300014
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Food Service 22.997.74 00 2.780.84 1097875 00 00 (5.238.159) (923819
Total Business-Typs Activities 22.59774 00 2.780.80 10.978.75 00 00 {9238 193 {6.238.1%)
Total Primary Governproent $5.727.748.13 RLt 143.436.8¢  102.073.00 A {5.473.000. 14} (5.238.19) (548223833}
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes 3,875,495.00 00 3,875,495.00
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 314,383.00 00 314,383.00
State Ald Not Restricied 1,498,399.70 00 1,449.399.7¢
Interest Barnings ~-Restrigted 2,137.12 .00 213712
Interest Earnings - Unrestricted 460582 4542 4,651.24
Miscelisneous Income 25,875.43 00 2587545
Transfers (9.192.77) 19277 00
Tatal General Revenues, Special temns, Extraordinazy Bems and Transfers 5712 703,32 5.238.1% 572194151
Uhange in Net Position 239.703.18 Ril¢] 239.703.18
Net Pogition ~ July 1 2,.259,579.00 186 2,25%.586.86
Prior Period Adjustment 17.540.61 39.69 17.580.30
Net Position - Tuly 1 (Restated) 227711881 47,55 227716716
Net Position - End of Year $2.516 82279 47.55 2.516.870.34

The sccompanying Notes to Basie Fruancial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual fund in a format
that segregates information fund type.




AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Exhibit B-1

Long-term Habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current petiod and therefore are not reported
as lHabilitles in the funds. {See Note 6)

Interest is acctued on outstanding debt 1 the government-wide
financial siatements, whereas in the governmental fimd financial
statements, an interast expenditure is reported when due,

Net Position of Government Fends

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral pari of this statement,
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Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenuze Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 533,920,138 R4 A0 A0 533,920.15
Regeivables:
Interfunds Receivable 44 40927 00 A0 A 4440527
Receivables from Other Governments 392,353.70 14,386,253 00 26,198,462 432,940.,57
{Other Recelvables 302,96 [0 L0 00 302,96
Resirieted Cush and Cash Equivalents 601,940,458 00 00 00 601,940,453
Total Assets $1,572.928.53 14,386.25 A0 26,198.62 161351340
LIABILATIES AND FUNE BALANCES:
Liabilitles:
Accounts Payable;
Interfunds Payable 00 7.611.86 A 2601719 33,535.05
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Payable 2,343.06 0 Rit 00 2,343.06
Unemployment Compensation Claitns
Payable 395033 00 Rii) 00 3,950.33
Other 17,680.05 40 A0 80 17.680.05
Unesrned Revenye ke 6.768.39 00 RLY 6,768.39
Total Liabilitics 23.973.44 14,386.25 A0 26081719 64.376.88
Pund Balances:
Restricted Fors
Excess Surplus - Corrent Yoar 27211287 .00 00 00 27211247
Bxcess Swrplus Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 2719.645.04 00 00 G 279.645.04
Capital Reserve 469,651.31 00 L6 0 469,651.31
Tuition Reserve 114,676.00 it 00 ki1 114,676.00
Debt Service G0 00 Reli] 181.43 181.43
Capital Projects .00 00 .00 00 00
Unemployment Compensation 17,613.14 00 00 00 17,613.14
Assigned Tos
Esncumbtrances 38,760.77 00 L D0 58,760,717
Designated by the BOE for
Subsequent Year's Expendinsres 41,609.95 Rii¢) 00 00 41,609.96
Unassigned:
General Fund 294 886.00 00 00 0 294.886.00
Total Fund Balanees 1,548.955.09 00 00 181.43 1,549,136,52
Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances $I!§’?25928.53 14,386.25 00 26,193.62
Amounts reported for governmenial activities in the
statement of net position {A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used ia governmental activities are not
financia! resources and therefore are not reported in
the goveramental fands, The cost of the essefs Ig
$8.541,466.94 and the accumulated depreciation is
$(2,196,669.791 (See Note 5) 6,344,797.15
Deferred outflows and {nflows of respurces are applicable
to future periods and therefore not reported in the funds.
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions (See Note 11) 1{35,099.00
Loss on Refunding Bonds (See Note 6} 169,906, 11
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (See Mote 1) (241.771L.00) 33,234.11

(5,339,772.09)

70.572.90

$2,516,822 79



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balanees
Goyvernmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

REVENULS:

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Tulijon fran Individuals
Transporiation Fees from Individuals
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve
Other Restricted Miscellancous Revenues
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenue

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Gther Instruction
Support Services:
Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services
General Administration
School Administrative Services
Central Setvices
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupll Transportation
Unallocated BEmployee Benefits
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Bxpenditures

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers
Total Other Financing Soutces and (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - July i
Prior Period Adjustments

Fund Balance « July 1 {Restated)

Fund Balapce - June 30

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Pebt Total
General Revenue Projecis Service  Governmental
Fund Fund Pund Fund Funds
3,875,495.00 A0 L0 314,383.00  4,189,878.00
140,210.00 00 00 00 140,216.00
446,00 08 A0 REY 44650
2,064,359 00 00 00 2,064.59
72.53 .00 B0 00 72,53
3048127 00 00 0 30,481.27
4,048,769.39 L0 00 314,383.00 4,363,152.39
368,298.70 KEH 00 94,366.00 962,764.70
B0 91,00425 00 .00 91,084.25
4917.168.09 91,094.25 00 40874900 3541701134
1,279,603.57 75,933.25 .00 OO 1,355,536.82
379,329.36 A0 .00 00 379,529.36
81.699.35 06 Rty 00 81,695.35
964,656.36 00 00 00 964,656.36
634,392.91 1516100 00 L0 649,553.91
229,155.58 G0 00 L0 229,155.58
12,756.00 i3] A0 00 12,7750.00
46,878.00 L0 00 00 46,878.00
229,704.80 L0 .00 00 229,704.80
197,502.68 00 00 L0 197,502.68
693,393 .46 00 00 .00 693,393.46
00 B0 D0 239,000.00 230,000.00
50 B0 80 178,573,770 178,573,770
14.534.40 .00 00 00 14,534.40
4.763.600.47 91,094 25 00 408357370 526326842
133,567.62 00 Q0 175.30 153.742.92
(2.178.27) o0 {7.014.50) (.00 (9.192.77)
217827 {.00% {7.014.50) .00 9.192.77)
131,389.35 80 {7.014,50) 175,30 144,556.13
1,380,025.13 REY 7,014.50 6.13 1387,045.76
17.540.61 00 D0 6 17.540.61
1.397.565.74 00 7.014.50 6,13 140458037
$1,548.955 09 00 00 18143  1,349,136.52

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit B-3

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Ixpenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2}

Amourds reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, on the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those agsets is allocaled over thelr estimated useful
tves as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlay in the current fiscal year,

Depreciation Expense
Capital Outlay

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces Jong-term liabilities in the staternent of net posttion and s not
reported in the Statement of Activitics,

In the statement of activities, cerfain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences
{vacation and sick pay} are measured by the amounts earned during the year. Inthe
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount
of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount,
the difference is a reduction in the reconeiliation; when the paid amount exceeds the
earned amount, the difference ts an additfon to the reconciliation.

CGovernmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when
¢ebt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deforred and amortized in the Statement
of Activities,

Amortization of Original Issue Premium
Amortization of Deferred Loss on Refinding of Debt

Pistrict pension confribution are reported as expenditures in the goveromental funds
when made. However, per GASB No. 68 they are reported as deferred outflows of re-
sources in the Statement of Net Position because the reported net pension Hability is
measured g year before the District’s report date. Pension expense, which is the change
in the net pension lability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of re-
sources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District Pension Contribution - 2021
Less: Pension Expense

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide financial statements,
whereas in the fund financial statements an interest expenditure is reported when due.

Per GASB No. 68 Non-employer contributing entities are requived to record an in-
crease in revenue and expense for On-behalf TPAF pension payments paid by the
State of New Jersey on the Statement of Activities that are in excess of those amounis
reported in the fimd financial statements,

Increase in On-behalf State Ald TPAF Pension Revenue
Increase in On-behalf TPAF Penslon Expense

Per GASB No. 75 Non-employer contributing entitles are required 1o record an in-
crease in revenue and expense for On-behalf TPAF & PERS post-retirement medical
payments paid by the State of New Jersey on the Statement of Activities that are in
excess of those amounts reported in the fund financisl statements,

Increase in On-behalf Siate Ald TPAF & PERS Post-Retirement Medical Revenne
Inerease in On-behalf State Aid TPAF & PERS Post-Retirement Medical Expense

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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144,550.15

(173,545.17)
1448040 (159,064.77)

230,000.00

6,286.57

8,990,95
(132707 (2,336.12)

25,413,00
(8,979,001 16,434.00

3,833,385
171,333.00
{171.333.00) RHi]
363,302.00
{3635,302.00} KH1]
$239.703.18



Exhibit B-4
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 3. 2021

Business-Type Activities-
Enterprise Funds

Food Service

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,881.43
Accounts Receivable:
State 87.21
Federal 1.224.36
Total Current Assets 7.193.00
Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment 21,353.13
Less Accumulated Depreciation (14.949.03)
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,404.10
Total Assets 13,597,10
LIABILITIES;
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable:
Interfund Payable 10,774.22
Students Charge Aceounts 533.50
Other Payable - Neptune City School District 2,241.83
Total Current Liabilities 13.549.55
NET POSITION:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 00
Unresiricted 47.55
Total Net Position $ 47535

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit B-5

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Pgsition

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursahle Programs

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs
Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Depreciation
Miscellaneous Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program - Seamless Summer Option
Federal Sources:
National School Lanch Program - Seamless Summer Option
HHFKA - Performance Based - Seamless Sunmer Option
Interest Earnings
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Loss Before Contributions and Transfers
Operating Transfer In: Board Contribution
Change in Net Position
Tatal Net Pasition - July 1
Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Position - July 1 {Restated)

Total Net Position - June 30

Business-Type Activities-
Enterprise Funds

Food Service

2,780,80

2,780.80

10,320.40
1,074.51
9,770.39
747.43
1,063.48
21.53

22.997.74

(20,216.94

510,83
10,263.24
204.68
45.42

11,024,17

(9,192.77)
9.192.77
00
7.86
39.69
47.53

$ 47.55

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-6
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Business-Type Activities-
Enterprise Funds

Yood Service

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received from Daily Sales 2,780.80

Payments to Suppliers (11,416.44)

Payments to Employees (9,770.39)

Payments for Employee Benefits (747.43)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (19,153.46)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

State Sources 468,70

Federal Sources : 9,586.56

Board Contribution 9,192.77

Interfunds (5,651.56)

Student Charge Accounts (751.30)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 12,845.17
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest on Investments 45.42
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 45.42
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (6,262.87)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1 12,144.30
Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30 $_5.881.43

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss. (20.216.94)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Depreciation 1.063.48
Total Adjustments 1.063.48
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities $(19,153.46)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Introduction

The Avon-By-The-Sea School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution, The Board consists of elected officials who are responsible for the fiscal contro! of the District,
A Superiniendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education of Avon-By-The-Sea School District have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepied standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A, Reporting Entity:

The Avon-By-The-Sea School Distriet is a Type Il district located in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey.
As a Type II District, the School District functions independently through a Board of Fducation. The board is
comprised of seven members elected to three year-terms. The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades
K-8.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

» the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

» the district holds the corporate powers of the organization

+  the district appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

» the district is able to impose its will on the organization

= the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the district
* there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the distrigt

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units,

B, New Accounting Standards:
During fiscal year 2021, the District adopted the following GASB statements;

+  GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement Is to improve guidance regarding
the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial purposes and how those activities should be
reported, The District has implemented this Statement and it impacted the financial statements. See Note 20 for
additional information.,

+  GASB Statement No. 90, Mafority Equity Interesis - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61, will
be effective for the year ended June 30, 2021, The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units,
Implementation of this Statement did not impact the District’s financial statements,

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include:

*  GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, The objective of this
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. Management is currently evaluating the effects this Statement will
have on future financial statements.

«  (GASB Statement No. 88, decounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of o Consiruction Period, will be
effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to
simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Management does nof expect
this Statement to impact the District’s financial statements.
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AYON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED
JUNE 30,2021

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'ID)

B.

New Accounting Standards {Cont*d):

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include (Cont’d}:

C.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2023, The
objective of this Statement is to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations, Management does
not expect this Statement to impact the District’s financial statements,

GASB Statement No. 92, Ommnibus 2020, will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, The objective of this
Statement is to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative liferature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. Management does not expect this Statement to impact the District’s
financial statements,

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, will be effective for the vear ended June 30,
2022. The objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from
the replacement of IBOR. Management does notexpect this Statement to impact the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No, 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements,
will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2023, The primary objectives of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements. Management
does not expect this Statement to impact the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Informaiion Technology Arrangements, will be effective for the year
ended June 30, 2024, The cbjective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for subscription-based information technofogy arrangements. Management does not expect this Statement
to impact the District’s financial statements,

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criterta, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No, 84
and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, The primary
objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the repotting of fiduciary
component units in circumstance in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the
primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically wonld perform; (2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postempioyment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other
employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund finanoial statements; and (3) enhance the
relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Seetion 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and
for benefits provided through those plans. Management does not expect this Statement to impact the District’s
financial statements.

Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accounting:

The School District’s basic financial statements consist of District-Wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial
information.

23



AYON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)Y
JUNEF, 30, 2021

NOTE 1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

C. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont’d):

Basis of Presentation

District-Wide Statemenis: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental
and business-type activity of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, Business-type activities are financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activity of the
School District at fiscal year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District's governmental
activities, Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and {b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital raquirerﬁents of a particular program,

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function or
business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the Schoof District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School
District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the Distriet’s funds, Separate statements foreach
fund category - governmenial and proprietary are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has
elected to require New Jersey districts to freat sach governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option
noted in GASB Statement No. 34, paragraph 76. The NIDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is
important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fupd: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for all
expendable financial resources except those required o be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable tnstructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the
capital outlay. subfund.

As required by the NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. GAAP as it pertains to
governmental entities states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-
lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.
Rescurces tor budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes,
and appropriated fund balance, Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets
for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense
by Board resclution,

Special Revenae Fund: The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from
State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restrioted to expenditures for specified purposes.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OX SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONT'D)

C. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont’d):

Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)

The District reports the following major governmental funds (Cont’d):

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resoutces are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annuval efection or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumutation of resources forand the payment
of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement
programs.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

Enterprise Fund: The enterprise fund accounts for ail revenues and expenses pertaining to the Board’s cafeieria
operations, The food service fund is utilized o account for operations that are financed and operated in a maoner
similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (ie. expenses including depreciation and
indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis ate financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

Basis of Accounting:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements,

District-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-Wide financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Governmental funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting; the enterprise fund and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting, Differences
in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses vetsus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to
accrual as under New Jersey State Statute o municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of
taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end ofthe school year. The District records the entire approved
tax levy as reveniue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal vear, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The
Distriet is entitled to receive monies under the cstablished payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to
be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the figcal year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financigl Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting., Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. “Measurable” moans the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or scon enough thercafter to be used fo pay liabilitics of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund hability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general Tong-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the District follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations igsued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Beard Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulleting, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements,
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D}

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt service
funds, The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at the annual school election
on the third Tuesday in April. The Board voted to adopt P.L. 2011 ¢.202, effective January 17, 2012, which eliminated
the annual voter referendum on budgets which meet the statutory tax levy cap limitations and the board of education
members are elected at the November general elections, Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
aceounting except for the special revenue fund as described later, The legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in NJ.A.C, 6:20-2A.2(m)1.  All budget
amendments/transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the
accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been
adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year.
For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accountingand GAAPwith
the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only
and the special revenue fund as presented in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information. Encumbrance
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis, The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accouniing budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental
records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

E. Encambrances:

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of resources
are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in Governmental Funds, other
than the Special Revenue Fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances, are reflected in the
balance sheéet as unearned revenues at fiscal vear end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year, An entry will be made at the beginning
of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Ouiflows/Inflows of Reseurces. and Net Pogition/Tund Balance:

Cash, Cash Equivalenfs, and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
tess at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus acerued interest.
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NOTE 1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

F. Aggets, Liabilities, Deferred Quitflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balanee (Cont’d):

New lersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest
in, New Jersoy Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey
school districts, Investments are reported at fair value,

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA).
GUDPA was enacied in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey,

N.LS,A. 17:9-41 et, seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute
requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are secured in
accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks {(both state and national
banlks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral,
having a market value of at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure
the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all
other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmentat Units.

Interfund Transactions:

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-Wide statements are reported in the same
manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reporied as Interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental
funds and as non-operating revenues/expenses in the enterprise fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

On fund financial statements, shor{-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. Theso
amounis are eliminated in the statement of net assets, except for amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities or governmental and agency funds, which are presented as internal balances,

Bond Premiums:

Bond premivins arising from the issuance of long-term debt (bonds) are amortized over the life of the bonds, In
systematic and rational method, as a component of interest expense. Bond premiums are presented as an adjustment
of the face amount of the bonds on the government-wide statement of net position,

Allowance for Uncollegtible Accounts:

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible,

Inventories:

Inventory purchases, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures during the year of
purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method.

Capital Assets:

The District has established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets
sre reported at cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The
general fixed assets acquired or constructed prior to June 30, 1992 are valued at cost based on historical records or
through estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs is not capitalized, The School District does not possess any infrastructure. The capitalization threshold used
by school districts in the State of New Jersey is $2,000.00.
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. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance {Cont’d):

Capital Assets (Cont’d);

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in progress are depreciated. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method under the half-year convention over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Office & Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Site Improvements 20
Licensed Vehicles 8

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in government fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets are not capitalized and related deprociation is
not reported in the fund financial statements,

Unearned Revenue;

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants
and entitlements received in the Special Revenue Fund before they have been earned are recorded as unearned revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations;

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-Wide financial statements. In
general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full
from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds, Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund
financial statements when due.

Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt

Deferred loss on refunding arising from issuance of the refunding bonds is recorded as a deferred outflow of resources.
It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related debt as a component of interest
expense. The amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to $11,327.07. As of June 30, 2021,
the District has an unamortized balance of $169,906.11 recorded as a deferred outflow of resources.

Net Position:

Net position represents the difference between the summation of assets and deferred outflows of resources, and the
summation of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used
for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net positions are reported as restricted when there
are limitations imposed on their use, either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District, or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The School District’s
policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.
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NOTE 1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

¥. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont’d):

Fund Balance:

Beginning with the fiscal year 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definition”. The School District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Schoal District is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District’s classifications, and policies for
determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form™ criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and
prepaid amounts.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes,
Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (1) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District’s highest level of decision-making
authority, which, for the School District, is the Board of Education. Such format action consists of an affirmative
vote by the Board of Education, memorialized by the adoption of a resolution. Onece committed, amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Education removes, or changes, the specified use by taking the
same type of action (resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by either the
Board of Education or by the business administrator, to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority
to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, Such autherity of the business administrator is established by
way of a formal job description for the position, approved by the Board of Education,

Unassigned - The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the general fund. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund, The general fund is the only fund that reports
a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report
a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available,
it is the policy of the School Distriet to spend restricted fund balances first, Moreover, when an expenditure is incutred
for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be wsed, it is the policy of
the School District to spend fund balances, ifappropriate, in the following order: committed, assigned, then unassigned.

Deferred OQutilows/Inflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then, The District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred loss on refunding bond
{ssuance and deforred outflows related to pensions.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred OQutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont’d):

Deferred Quiflows/Inflows of Resources (Cont’d):

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resourges, This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The District has ane item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to pensions,

Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange fransactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in
the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal vear or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal year-ead,

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal valve in return,
include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the
pertod in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations s recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the {iscal year when use is first permitted; matching
requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified acctual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available
at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the enterprise fund. For
the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the setvice that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses:

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a function, Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the
Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social security, workers compensation
and medical and pengion benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where
practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense allocation column of the
Statement of Activities, Depreciation expense, that could not be attributed to a specific function is reported separately
on the Statement of Activities.

Management Bstimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assymptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual resulis could differ from those estimates,
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NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The District is governed by the deposit and investment limitations of New Jersey state law. The deposits and
investments held at June 30, 2021, and reported at fair value, are as follows:

Carrying
Type Rating Maturities Value
Deposits:

Demand deposits ] 1,135,860.60
Investments:

None 00
Total deposits and investments $1.135.860.60
Reconciliation of Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 533,920.15

Restricted Assets:

Capital Reserve Account ~ Cash 469,651.31
Tuition Reserve Account - Cash 114,676.00
Unemployment Compensation - Cash 17,613.14

$1.135,860.60

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash, cash equivalents, and
investments had a bank balance of $1,192,829.10 at June 30, 2021. Of the bank balance $250,000,00 was fully insured
by depository insurance and $942,829.10 was secured by a collateral pool held by the bank, but not in the District’s
name, as required by New Jersey statutes.

Investment Interest Rate Risk - The District has no formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a

means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Investment Credit Risk - The District has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the

limitation of state law as follows;

1.

2,
3.

6.
7.

8.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United States of
America;

Government money market mutual funds;

Any obligation that a federal agency or federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress,
which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor,

Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within
which the school district is located;

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from the date of purchase, approved
by the Division of Investment in the Department of Treasury for investment by school district;

Local governments investment pools;

Depostits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of P.L, 1977,
c.281; or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.
At June 30, 2021, the District had no investments.
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NOTE 3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNY

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Avon-By-The-Sea Board of Education in October 2000
for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve
account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund anuual budget,

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the
capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by board resolution at
year end (June 1 to June 30} of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both, A
district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by
a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to
N.J.8.A4. 19:60-2, Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP,

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2020 $460,572.22
Interest earnings 2,064.59
Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 7,014.50
Withdrawals

Approved by Board resolution €00y

Ending balance, June 30, 2021 $469,651.31

The Juge 30, 2021 LRFP balance of lccal support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2021 is $0, There
were 1o withdrawals this year from the capital reserve account for use in a DOE approved facilities project, consistent
with the district’s Long Range Facilities Plan.

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2021, consisted of interfunds and intergovernmenial accounts. All receivables are considered
collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

Governmental Distriet-Wide
Fund Financial Financial

__Statements Statements
Local Tax Levy 349,156.46 349,156,406
State Aid (9,397 86 69,485.07
Federal Aid 14,386.258 15,610.61
Interfunds 44,409.27 10,774.22
Other 302.96 302.96
Gross Receivables 477,652 80 445,329.32
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles 00 00
Total Receivables, Net $477.652.80 44532932
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2021

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated;
Site improvements
Building and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
‘Total capital assets being depreciated
Total at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Site Improvements
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activity capital assets, net

Business-Type activities:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Enterprise fund capital assets, net

Beginning Transfers or Transfers or  Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance
8,800.00 00 .00 8,800.00
00 14.480.40 .00 14.480.40
8.800.00 14,480.40 .00 23.280.40
130,946.00 00 .00 130,946.00
7,516,133.50 00 00 7,516,133.50
855,607.04 00 00 855,607.04
15.500.00 .00 00 15.500.00
8.518.186.54 .00 00 8.518,186.54
8.526,986.54 14.480.40 00 8.541.466.94
(63,223.98)  (4,290.00) 00 (67,513.98)
(1,196,792.02) (149,730.36) 00 (1,346,522.38)
(747,608.62) (19,524,81) 00 (767,133.43)
(15,500.00) {.00) 00 {15.500.00)
(2,023.124.62) (173.545.17) L0 (2.196,669.79)
$6.503,.861.92 (159.064.77) 00 6,344,797.15
21,353.13 .00 .00 21,353.13
(13,885.55) _ (1.063.48) .00 (14.949.03)
$ 7.467.58 {1,063.48) .00 6.404.10

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental programs:

Instruction - Regular

Support Services - Administration
Maintenance - Custodial
Unallocated

Total

3,045.05
52.80
505.87
169.941.45
$173,545.17

33



AYON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through referendums. All bonds are
retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness, Bonds issued by the District are general
obligation bonds.

A, Long-term Obligation Activity:

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2020 Additions Reductions  June 30,2021 One Year
Bonds Payable 5,005,000.00 .00 (230,000.00) 4,775,000.00 240,000.00
Add: Unamortized Premium 143,855.15 .00 (8.990.95) 134.864.20 .00
5,148,855.15 00 (238,990.95)  4,909,864.20 240,000,00
Compensated Absences 57,365.46 4,866.84 (11,153.41) 51,078.89 .00
Net Pension Liability 483.608.00 .00 (104,779.00) 378.829.00 .00

$5.689,828.61 4,866.84 (354,.923.36) 5.339.772.09  240.000.00

For governmental activities, the liability for compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

Government Activities

Principal
Issue Interest Date of Balance
Dates Rates Maturity  June 30, 2021

2015 Refunding Bonds 06/25/2015 1.50%-5.00%  02/01/2036 $4.775,000.00

B. Debt Service Requirements:

Principal and interest on bonds payable at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 240,000.00 169,375.00 409,375.00
2023 255,000.00 157,375.00 412,375.00
2024 265,000.00 147,175.00 412,175.00
2025 275,000.00 136,575.00 411,575.00
2026-2030 1,535,000.00 527,131.26 2,062,131,26
2031-2035 1,800,000.00 261,375.02 2,061,375.02
2036 405.000.00 14.175.00 419.,175.00

$4,775,000.00 1,413.181.28 6.188,181,28
C. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued: The District has no authorized but not issued bonds at June 30, 2021,
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D):

D. Long-Term Debt Defeasance: On June 25, 20135, the District refunded $5,730,000,00 of its March 1, 2006 School
District Bonds and issued $5,930,000.00 Refunding School Bonds, The teacquisition price exceeded the net carrying
amount of the old debt by $237,868.53 and this amount is being amortized over the remaining life of the new debt
iszued and reported as a Deferred Outflow of Resources on the Statement of Net Position, The refunding resulted in
a savings of $425,371.32, throughout the life of the bonds and a net present value savings of $315,167.26 at the time
the refunding bonds were issued,

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASES

The District had three operating leases for Savin copiers, one expired March 28, 202 1, one expires November 28, 2025,
and one expires May 28, 2026, The District also has an operating lease for a software program that monitors printing
usage by staff members which expires on April 28, 2025, The total operating lease payments made during the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $11,683.22. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Principal
2022 12,363.96

2023 12.363.96

2024 12,363.96

20258 8,840.06

2026 5,192 80

Total minimum lease payments $51.124.74

NOTE 8. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $1,548,955.09 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2021, $272,112.87 has been restricted for
excess surphus; $279,645.04 has been restricted for excess surplus at June 30, 2020 and has been appropriated and
included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2022; $469,651.31 has been restricted for the Capital
Reserve Account; $1 14,676.00 has been restricted for tuition adjustment in accordance with N.J.A.C, 6A:23-3.1{(f%8);
$17,613.14 has been restricted for Unemployment Compensation Acoount; $58,760.77 of encumbrances for outstanding
purchase orders have been assigned for other purposes; $41,609,96 has been assigned 1o be designated for subsequent
year's expenditures and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2022; $294,886.00 is unassigned.

NOTE 9. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P,L. 2004, ¢.73 (81701), the designation for Reserved Fund
Balance - Fxcess Surplus s a required caleulation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1997 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30, if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund
balance in their subsequent years® budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2021 is 5272,112.87,

NOTE 10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs:

The School District participates in federal awards and state financial assistance grant programs, These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives, The School District is potentially liable
for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware
of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.
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NOTE 11, PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the Districl are covered by either the Public Employees® Retirement
System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits (Division), Accordingto the State of New Jersey Administrative
Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Public Employees’ Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund, These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or on
the internet at http:/Awww.state.nj. us/treasury/pensions/annrpris.shtml,

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF} - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established
as of January I, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A, 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and
medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers® Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute, 100% of employer contributions are
made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing employers,
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Boar
of Bxaminers, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and
certified,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - For purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions te/deductions from the TPAF s fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms, Investments are reported at fair value,

Pension Lighilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

The employer contributions for the district are legally required to be funded by the State in accordance with N.1L.S.A,
18:66-33. Therefore, the district {employer) is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB
Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the district (employer) does not
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the district. However, the siate’s portion of the
net pension liability that was associated with the district was $8,800,035 as measured on June 30, 2020 and $7,650,479
as measured on June 30, 2019,

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District vecognized pension expense of $547,224 and revenue of $547,224 for
support provided by the State. The measurement period for the pension expense and revenue reporied in the district’s
financial statements (4-2) at June 30, 2021 is based upon changes in the collective net pension liability with a
measurement period of June 30, 2019 through June 30, 2020. Accordingly, the pension expense and the related
reventie associated with the support provided by the State is based upon the changes In the collective net pension
liability between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020.

Although the district does not report net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows related to the TPAF, the
following schedule illustrates the collective net pension liability and deferred items and the State’s portion of the net
pension liability associated with the district. The collective amounts are the total of all New Jersey local governments
participating in the TPAF plan.

06/30/2019 06/30/2020
Collective deferred outflows of resonrces $10,077,460,797 $9,585,140,982
Collective deferred inflows of resources 17,525,379,167 14,409,361,877

Collective net pension lability (Nonemplover-State of New Jersey) $61,370,943,870 65,848,796,740
State’s portion of the net pension liability that was associated with

the district 7,650,479 8,800,035
State’s portion of the net pension liability that was associated with
the district as a percentage of the collective net pension Hability 0.0124659629%  0.0133640027%
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NOTE 11. PENSION PLANS (CONT’D)
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an
actvarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020, This actuarial valuation used the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement;

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55% - 4.45%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 2.75% - 5.65%
Based on Years of Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality table
with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
02010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median
Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment
for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement
is based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13,50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real BEstate : 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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NOTU 11, PENSION PLANS {(CONT’D)
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d):

Discount rate. The discount rate used fo measure the State’s total pension liability was 5.40% as of Tune 30, 2020,
This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00%, and a municipal bond rate 0f2.21% as of June 30, 2020, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond
Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation mumicipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 78% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2062, Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2062, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected berefit payments after that date in determining the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the Disirict's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. Since the
District has no proportionate share of the net pension liability because of the special funding situation, the district
would not be sensitive to any changes in the discount rate. Detailed information about the pension plan’s sensitivity
of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount rate is available in the separately issued State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report at hitp://www.nj.gov/ireasury/pensions/annipts.shtml,

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report at
hitp://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-rpris-home.shtml,

Public Employees' Retirement System {PERS) - The Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) was established
as of January I, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A, 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to cerfain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-
administered retirement system ot other state or local jurisdiction,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the
satne basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, Investments are reported
at fair value,

Pension Liabifities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferved Inflows of Resowrces Related
to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $378,829 for its proportionate share of the net pension lability,
The net pension Hability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forwerd to June 30, 2020, The
Distriet’s proportion of the net pension liability is based on the ratio of the contributions as an individual employer to
total contributions to the PERS during the year ended June 30, 2020, At June 30, 2020, the District’s proportion was
0.0023230504% which was a decrease of 0.0003609070% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019,
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Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
pension expense of $8,979. AtJune 30, 2021, the District reported deferved outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 6,898 1,340
Changes of assumptions 12,290 158,619
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 12,949 -
Changes in propottion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 47,549 81,812
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 25413 -
Total $105.099 $241,771

$25,413 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district contributions
subsequent to the measurement date (ie. for the school year ending June 30, 2021, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability measured as of June 30, 2021, Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30
2022 $(48,784)
2023 (58,008)
2024 (30,737
2025 (20,416)
2026 (4,140}
Total $(162.085)

Additional Information:
Local Group Collective balances at June 30, 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

06/30/2019 06/30/2020
Collective deferred outflows of resources $3,149,522,616 $2,347,583,337
Collective deferred inflows of resources 7,645,087,574 7,849,949 467
Collective net pension liability (Non State - Local Group) $18,143,832,135 16,435,616,426
District’s portion of net pension liability 483,608 : 378,820
District’s portion % 0.0026839574% 0.0023230504%

Actuarial assumptions - The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used
the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation Rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00% - 6.00%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 3.00% - 7.00%

Investment Rate of Return

Based on Years of Service
7.00%
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NOTE 11. PENSION PLANS (CONT’D

Publie Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee mortality table
with a 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Disability retirement rates used to
value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7%
adjustment for males and 117,2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on
a generational basis, Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Tevm Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments
and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s farget asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in
the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
.8, Bquity 27.00% T.711%
Non-U.8. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Assets 3.00% 0.73%
Real Bstate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 3.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% _ 0.50%
U.5. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strafegies 3.00% 3.40%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that confributions from employers will be based on 78% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the
local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability,
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportiongie share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability measured as of June 30, 2020,
calculated using the discount rate of (7.00%), as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if'it were calculated using a discount rate that is [-percentage-point lower (6,00%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

Cuarrent
1% Biscount 1%
Decrease Rate Tnerease
{6,00%) (7.00%) {8.00%)
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $451,184 $378,829 $317,513

Pension plan fiduciary net position, Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report at
http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-rprts-home.shtml.

Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was
established as of July 1, 2007 under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J.S.A.
43:15C-1 et, seq.). The DCRP is a cost-sharing multiple-omployer defised contribution pension fund. The DCRP
provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-shelteted, defined contribution retirement benefit, along
with Tife insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.8.A. 43:15C-1 et.

sed.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with Chapter 92, P.L.
2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary.
Member contributions are maiched by a 3% employer contribution. For the year ended June 30, 2021, employee
contributions total $7,422.06 and the District recognized pension expense of $4,551.39. The State Treasurer has the
right under current law to make temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus plan assets
in the retirement system; however statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets
no longer exist.

PERS and TPAF Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are setby N.J.S.A,
43:15A and 43.38, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for
medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and
are generslly determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year of service ¢redit, as defined. Final average
salary equals the average salary for the final three vears of service prior to retirement (or highest three years’
wmpsnsation if other than the final three years). Members may sesk early retivement afier achieving 25 vears of
service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits
would begin the first day of the month afier the mmember attains normal retirement age.,

The TPAF and PERS provides for specified medical heneﬁts for members who retire after achieving 25 years of
qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the System. Members are always fully vested for
their own contributions and, after three vears of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest carned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest eredited to the
members’ acoounts,

Significant Legislation - Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 201 1, made various changes fo the manner in which
the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS} and the Police and Firemen’s Retirement System (PFRS) operate
and to the benefit provisions of those systems.
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Significant Legislation (Cont’d}

Chapter 78's provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

s New members of the PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011, (Tier 5 members), will need 30 years of creditable
service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month
that the member is under age 65.

« The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in PERS is increased from age 63 to 63 for Tier §
members.

« The annual benefit under special retirement for new PFRS members enrolled after June 28, 2011, (Tier 3
members), will be 60% instead of 65% of the member’s final compensation plus 1% for each yvear of
creditable service over 25 years but not to exceed 30 years,

+ Increases in active member contribution rates, PERS active member rates increase from 5.5% of annual
compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years; PFRS active member rate increase from
8.5% to 10%. For fiscal year 2012, the member contribution rates increased in October 2011, The phase-in
of the additional incremental member contribution rates for PES members will take place in July of each
subsequent fiscal year.

+ The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA ) additional increases to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permiited by this law.

+ New employee coniribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit coverage.
Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution
is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage, The increased
employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to Chapter 78's
effective date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary.

» In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’ wnfunded accroed
liability (from a leve! percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by NLJ.S. A, 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter
115, P.L. of 1997 (PERS) and N.J.8.A, 18:66 (TPAF) requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation, TPAF and
PERS provide for employee contributions of 7.50% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers are
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF rate is 7.50% and
the PERS rate is 7.50% of covered payroll.

The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits,
and post-retirement medical premiums, Under current statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cast (APC) Contribated Linbility
6/30/21 25,413 100% -
6130420 26,326 100% -
6/30/19 24,199 100% -
Three-Year Trend ¥nformation for TPAE (Paid on-behalf of the District)
Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC FPension
Funding Cost (ATC) Contribufed * Liability
6/30/21 375,851 100% -
6/30:20 208,378 % -
6/30/19 250,307 100%% N
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NOTE 11. PENSION PLANS (CONT’D)

Contribution Requirements (Cont’d)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the State of New Jersey did contribute $117,799.00 to the TPAF for post-
retirement medical benefits and $389.00 for long-term disability insurance on behalf of the District. Also, in
accordance withN.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $109,766,70 during the year ended
June 30, 2021, for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base
salaries. The PERS amounts have been included in the fund-based statements as pension expense and the TPAF on-
behalf amounts have been included in the fund-based statements as revenues and expenditures. The PERS and TPAF
amounts have been modified and included in the District-wide financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 68.

NOTE 12. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey provides employer-paid coverage to members of the TPAF who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provision of Chapter 126,
P.L. 1992, the State also provides employer-paid coverage to members of PERS and Alternate Benefits Program (ABP)
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the
member’s employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement
can continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health
benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance
for themselves and their covered dependents. In Fiscal Year 2020, the State paid PRM benefits for 143,053 State and
local retirees,

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the State does not pre-
fund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM expenses that the State may incur in
future years. For Fiscal Year 2020, the State contributed $1.578 billion to pay for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs
incurred by covered retirees, The State’s “pay-as-you-go” contributions have remained consistent with Fiscal Year
2019 amounts. Reductions are attributable to various cost savings initiatives implemented by the State, including new
Medicare Advantage contracts, The State has appropriated $1.775 billion in Fiscal Year 2021 as the State’s

contribution to fund pay-as-you-go PRM costs.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its obligations to pay
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new standard supersedes the previously issued
guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year 2018, The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory
language names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2020 total State OPEB liability
to provide these benefits is $65.5 billion, a decrease of $10.5 billion or 13.8 percent from the $76.0 billion liability
recorded in Fiscal Year 2019,

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52,
Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter
9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

43



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 12. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D

General Information about the OPEB Plan (Cont’d)

Plan Description and Benefits Provided (Cont’d)

Plan Membership
At June 30, 2019, the Program membership consisted of the following:

Local Educatiocn

Active Plan Members 216,804
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 149,304

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not
Yet Receiving Benefit Programs -
Total Plan Members 366,108

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer
contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASB Statement No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the
District did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note information is reported at the State’s level and is not specific to the
board of education.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending
on the pension plan the member enrolled in. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the
pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement.

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability $67,809,962,608
Inflation Rate 2.50%
TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55 - 4.45% 2.00 - 6.00% 3.25-15.25%
Based on Service Based on Service Based on Service
Years Years Years
Thereafter 1.55-4.45% 3.00 - 7.00% Applied to All
Based on Service Based on Service Future Years
Years Years

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General” (PERS), and
“Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
“General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification
headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies
for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018, July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PERS, respectively.
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D)

General Information about the OPEB Plan {(Cont’d)

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability (Cont’d)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4,5% long-term trend rate after
seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020
arereflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial
trend rate is 7.0% and decteases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the
municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the
municipal bond rate.

Changes in the State’s Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2019 $41,729,081,045
Changes for Year:
Service Cost 1,790,973,822
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 1,503,341,357
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 11,544,750,637
Changes of Assumptions 12,386,549,981
Gross Benefit Payments by the State (1,180,515,618)
Contributions from Members 335.781.384
Net Changes 26.080.881.563
Balance at June 30, 2020 $67.809,962,608

Changes of assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.50 percent in 2019 to 2.21 percent in 2020.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the State for school board retirees, as well as what the State’s total
OPEB liability for school board would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
or l-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate;

June 30, 2020
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $81,748,410,002 $67,809,962,608  $56,911,439,160
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D

General Information about the OPER Plan (Cont’d)

Toial Nonemployer OPEB Liability (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the total OPERB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the State, as well as what the State’s total OPEB liability would be
it it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher
than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

June 30, 2020
Healthcare
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $54,738,488,540 $67,809,962,608  $83,375,182,975

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $483,101 determined by the
State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered
through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 and in which there is a special funding
situation.

In accordance with GASB Statement No, 75, the Avon Board of Education’s proportionate share of school retirees
OPEB is zero, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. AtJune 30,2020, the State repotted deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to retired school employee’s OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences Between Actual and Expected Experience 10,295,318,750 (9,170,703,615)
Assumption Changes 11,534,251,250 (7,737,500,827)
Contributions Made in Fiscal Year Ending 2020 After

June 30, 2019 Measurement Date TBD N/A

$21,829,570,000 $(16.908,204,442)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school
employee’s OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2021 $43,440,417
2022 $43,440,417
2023 $43,440,417
2024 $43,440,417
2025 $43,440,417
Thereafter $4,704,163,473
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NOTE §3. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for Compensated Absences (e.g. unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 16 {GASB 18}, “Accounting for Compensated Absences™. A liability for
Compensated Absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the District’s personnel
policy. Upon termination, employeocs are paid for acerued vacation. The District’s policy permits employees to
accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amouni to subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall
be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee
unions.

The entire liability for compensated absences is reported in the District-Wide Statements of Net Position in two
components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year.

NOTE 14, DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years, Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable
Met Life
Equi-Vest

NOTE 15, RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters,

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability and
sutety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method™, Under this plan, the District
is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and
charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State, The following is
a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid
unemployment compensation claims payable (including unspent employee payroll deductions) and the ending balance
of the District’s unemployment compensation fund for the current and previous two years:

Inierest Earnings/ Unemployment
District Employee Amount Compensation Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions  Reimbursed  Claims Pavable Balance
2020-2021 72.53 5,684.93 1,734.60 3,950.33 17,613,14
2019-2020 100,51 4,137.45 1.30 00 17,540.61
2018-2019 i4,840.00 3,67827 15,385.32 RH{ 13,303.95
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NOTE 16. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund balances at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund;

Food Service Fund 10,774,22% .00
Special Revenue Fund 7,617.86 00
Debt Service Fund 26,017.19 00
Special Revenue Fund:
General Fund 00 7,617.86
Debt Service Fund:
General Fund .00 26,017.19
Food Service Fund:
General Fund .00 10,774.22
44.,409,27 44.409.27

All of the above interfunds represent short-term loans.
*Reported as a receivable on the District-Wide statement of net position.
As of June 30, 2021, the District’s operating transfers consisted of the following:

$9,192,77 From the General Fund to the Enterprise Fund
to cover the deficit in operations.

$7,014.50 From the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund
Capital Reserve Account for unexpended funds
from local share of financing,

NOTE 17. INVENTORY

The District had no inventory at June 30, 2021.

NOTE 18. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

As reflected on Exhibit A-1, Statement of Net Position, a deficit in unrestricted net position of ($206,854.15) existed
as of June 30, 2021 for governmental activities. The primary causes of this deficit is the District not recognizing the
receivable for the last two state aid payments and the recording of the long-term liability for compensated absences
and net pension, In accordance with full accrual accounting, which is the basis of accounting for Exhibit A-1,
Statement of Net Position, such liabilities are required to be recorded in the period in which they are incurred.
However, in accordance with the rules and regulations that govern the District in the formulation of their annual budget
(see Note 1), compensated absences and pension liabilities that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a
specific event outside the control of the District and its employees, are funded in the period in which such services are
rendered or in which such events take place. Therefore, this deficit in unrestricted net position for governmental

activities does not indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties.
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NOTE 19, FRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

GASB Statement No, 84, Fiduciary Activities, was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, As part of
this implementation, the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund which had been previousty reported in the Fiduciary
Funds is now reported in the General Fund. The cumulative effect of this implementation has resulted in a prior period
adjustment of $17,540.71 to increase the ending balances as of June 30, 2020 to the General Fund Balance and the Net
Position,

The District had to increase prior year Accounts Receivable as reflected on the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance in the adjustment column. The cumulative effect of this adfustment has resulted in a prior period
adjustment of $39,69 to increase the ending balance as of June 30, 2020 to the Net Position in the Business-Type
Activities.

NOTE 26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2021 and February
23, 2022, the date that the financial staiements were available to be issued for possible disclosure and recognition in
the financiai stafements, and below is the only item that came to the attention of the District that would require
disclosure:

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States and specifically in New Jersey has continued to cause
disruption of the District’s normal operations. The pandemic is having significant effects on global markeds,
supply chaing, businesses and communities. Though the impact on the District’s financial operations cannot
be reasonably estimated at this date, it is likely that there will be an impact on various parts of the fiscal year
2022 operations, revenue sources and financial results including but not limited te, school re-opening on a full-
time basis, Management believes the District is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact and
additional Federal and State Grants made available to the District will help alleviate some of the additional
costs 1o be incurred. However, the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated
at this time.
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Exhibit C-1
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Coamparisan Schedule

General Fund .
Figeal Year Eny une 30, 2021
{Unaudited)

Yarinnce
. Final to Actual

Orlginal Budget Final Favorable
Budget Transfers Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES;

Local Sources:

" Losal Tax Levy 3,875,495.00 .00 3,875,495.00 3,875,495.00 0.00
Tuition from Individuals 85,422.00 0.00 85,422.00 140,210.00 54,788.00
Tranisportation Fees from Individuals 0.00 .00 0.00 446,00 446.00
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Funds 400.00 0,00 400,00 2,064.59 1,664.59

Other Restricted Miscellanous Revenues 0,00 0.00 0,00 72.53 72,53
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues 5,300,00 Q.00 5,300.00 30,481.27 25,181,27
Total - Local Sources 3,966,617.00 0.00 3,966,617.00 4,048,769.39 82,152.39
State Soureest
Transportation Aid 63,965.00 0.00 63,965.00 63,965.00 0.00
Special Education Categorical Aid 122,510.00 {2,594.00) 119,916,00 119,916,00 0.00
Security Aid 16,622,00 0.00 16,622.00 16,622.00 0,00
Extraordinary Special Education Costs Aid 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 60,339.00 45,332.00
Reimbursed Nonpublie School Transportation Costs Add 0.00 0,00 0,00 3,542,00 3,542,00
TPAF - Pension Contributions (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 0.00 0.00 0,00 375,801.00 375,891.00
TPAF - Post Retirement Medical Contrib. {On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 0.00 .00 0.00 117,799.00 117,799.00¢
TPAF - LTD Insurance Contributions (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 0.00 0.00 0.00 389.00 389.00
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (Mon-Budgeted) 0.00 0.00 0.00 109,766,70 109,766, 70

Total State Sources 218,007.00 (2,554.00) 215,503.00 868,229.70 652,726.70

Total Revenues 4,184.714.00 (2,594.00) 4,182,120.00 4,916,999.09 734,879.09
EXPENDITURES:

Current Expense:
Regular Programs - Inatruetion:

Preschool - Salaries of Teachers 51,156,00 680,00 51,836.00 50,835,775 1,000,25

Kindergarten - Salaties of Teachers 98,779.00 {4,059.97) 94,719.03 94,592.10 126.93

Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 423,083.00 (11,602.98) 411,480,02 410,860.47 619,55

Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 333,189,00 (24,786,22) 308,402,78 302,875,84 5,526,94
Regular Programs - Undisiriboted Instruction:

Other Salaries for Instruction 23,770.00 34893 24,118.93 24,118.93 0.00

Purchased Professional - Bducational Services 0.00 22,2800.00 22,800.00 22,800,00 . 0.00

General Supplies 121,676.00 (47,699.32) 73,976.68 68,541.18 5,435.50

Other Objocts 41,067.00 2,905.91 43,972.91 41,281.45 2,691.46

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION 1,092,720,00 {61,413.65) 1,031,306.35 1,015,905.72 15,400.63
Resource Room/Resource Centers

Salaries of Teachers 349,030.00 (1,032.00) 348,018.00 316,534.24 31,483.76

Other Salaries for Instruction 0.00 17,750.00 17,750.00 17,25000 500,00

General Supplies 500.00 0.00 500,00 406.09 93.91
Totnl Resource Room/Resource Centor - Instr. 349,550.00 16,718.00 366,268.00 334,190.33 32,077.67

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 349,550.00 16,713,00 366,268,00 334,190,213 32,071,67
Billngual Edueation - Inst,

Salaries of Teachers 500.00 0.00 500.00 427,50 72.50
Totnl Bilingua) Education - Inst, 500.00 0.00 500,00 421,50 72.50
School-Spon. Coenrricular Actvis, - Inst.

Salaties 13,389.00 {196.00) 13,193.00 11,639,00 1,554.00

Other Objects 1,200,00 1,215.17 2,415.17 2,385.41 29.76
"Total Scliool-Spon, Cocurricular Actvts, - Inst, 14,589.00 1,019.17 13,608.17 14,024.41 1,583.76
School-Spon, Cocurricular Athletles - Inst.

Salaries 23,279.00 (5,658.96) 19,620.04 19,620.04 0.00

Purchased Services (300-500 series) 7,941,00 (7,493.00) 448.00 448,00 .00

Supplies and Materials 2,000.00 (1,702.07 29093 2878 262,15

Other Objects 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0,00
Total Schaol-Spon, Coenrricular Athletics - Inst. 36,420.00 (14,861.03) 21,558.57 21,206 82 262.15
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Expenditures (contimred)

Othier Supplemental/At-Risk Programs - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Salaries of Reading Speoialists
General Supplies

Total Other Supplemental/At-Risk Progranss - Instruction

TOTAL INSTRUCTION AND AT-RISK PROGRAMS

Undistributed Expenditures - Tnstrueti

Trition to Other LEAs Within the State - Regular

Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Special

Tuition to County Yoc, School Dist, - Regular

Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within State
Total Undistributed Expendifures - Instrnction

Undistributed Expend. - Attend, & Socinl Work
Salaries
Total Undistributed Expend, - Attend, & Social Work

Undizt, Expend, - Tealth Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional Services
Bupplies and Materials
Other Objests
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services

Undist. Expend, - Speech, OT, PT, & Related Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Undist. Exp. - Speech, OT, PT & Related Services

Undist, Expend, - Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secrotarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Totn! Undist, Expend. - Child Study Teams

Undist, Expend, - Improvement of Inst, Serv.
Salaries of Supervisor of Tnstruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salarics of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Edueational Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500)
Other Objects

Tatal Undist, Expend, - Improvement of Inst, Serv,

Undist. Expend. - Edu. Media Serv./Sch, Library
Salaries
Salaries of Technology Coordinators
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Supplies and Materials

Totnl Undist, Expend, - Edu, Mcdia Serv./Sch. Library

Undist, Expend., - Instr, Staff Training Services
Other Purchased Services {400-500 series)
Tatal Undist, Expend, - Tustr. Staff Training Services

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budpetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

Figcal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit C-1

{Unaudited)
Variance
Final to Aetnal
Orlginal Budget Final Favorable
Budget Transfers Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3,297.00 (3,297.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0
44,558,00 1,332,00 45,890.00 45,800,00 0.00
200,00 0.00 200.00 60.62 139338
48,055.00 {1,965.00) 46,090.00 45.950.62 139.38
1,541,834.00 (60,502.51) 1,481,331.49 1,431,795.40 49,536.09
609,274,00 36,735,00 646,009.00 642,859.00 3,150.00
152,579.00 {14,091.04) 138,487.96 138,487.86 0,10
26,250.00 (5,050.00) 21,200.00 21,200.00 0.00
195,566.00 {33,456.30) 162,109.50 162,109.50 0.00
983,669.00 {15,862,54) 967,806.46 964,636.36 3,150.10
35,776.00 18.80 35,965.80 35,965.80 0,00
35,176.00 189.80 35,965.80 35,965.80 0.00
72,345.00 4,795.00 17,140.00 77,140.00 0.00
4,500.00 (1,000.00) 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00
3,500.00 683,73 4,183,73 4,183.73 0.00
30,00 0.00 30.00 25.00 5,00
80,375.00 4,478.73 84,853.73 84,848.73 5.00
39,421.00 (465.85) 38,955.15 38,955,015 £.00
0,00 32,161, 72 32,161.72 32,161,72 .00
250,00 1,516.05 1,766.05 1,766.05 0,00
39.671.00 33,211.92 72,882.92 72,882,92 £.00
52,006,00 0.00 52,006.00 52,005.96 .04
37,526.00 (1,099.96) 36,426.04 35,991.80 434,24
61,350,00 (2,571.50) 58,772.50 5B,772.50 0.00
25,006,00 2,330,00 27,330.00 26,680,00 630,00
5,000,00 1,291.00 6,291.00 6,291.00 0.00
500.00 (110.00) 390.00 174.69 215.31
500.00 {350.00) 130,00 150.00 0.90
181,882.00 (516.46) 181,365.54 180,065,935 1,299.59
54,256,00 0,00 54,256.00 52,006,04 2,249.96
1,100,00 0.00 1,100.00 1,080,00 20.60
10,222.00 0.00 16,222.00 9,968.12 253,88
6,500.00 {400.00) 6,100.00 2,867.00 3,233.00
0.00 325.00 325,00 32500 0.00
1,000.00 420.00 1,420.00 1,420.00 0.00
73,078.00 345.00 73,423.00 67,666.16 3,756.84
8,746.00 0.00 8,746.00 6,778.48 1,967.52
16,800.00 28,266,50 45,066,50 41,116,50 3,950.00
3,500,00 {2,500.00) 1,000.00 0,00 1,000.00
250,00 0.00 250.00 154,27 95.73
29,296.00 25,766.50 53,062,50 48,049.25 7.013.25
5,000.00 (3,000.00) 2,000.00 500.00 1,500.00
5,000.00 (3,000.00) 2.000.00 500.00 1,500,090
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AVON-BY-TIHE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
omparison Schednl

General Fund

Figcal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Bu

Expenditures (continved)

Undisgt. Expend, - Supp. Serv. - General Admin,
Salaries
General Admin, Safaries-Governance Staff (BOE Direat Reporis Only)
Lcgal Services
Audit Fees
Purchased Technical Services
Communieations/Telephone
Mise: Purchased Services (400-500)
General Supplies
Miscellaneous Expenditures
BOE Membership Dues and Fees
Total Undist, Expend. - Supp. Serv, - General Admin,

Undist. Expend.-Support Serv.-School Admin.
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Tatal Undist, Expend.-Support Serv,-School Admn.

Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services
Salaries
Purchased Technical Services
Supplies and Materials
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Tatal Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services

Undist; Expend. -Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services
Supplies
Other Objects

Total Undist. Expend, -Required Maintennnce for School Facilities

Undist, Expend. - Custodial Services
Salaries
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maint Services
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance
General Supplies
Energy (Natural Gas}
Energy (Blectricity)
Other Objects

Total Undist. Expend, - Custodinl Services

Undist, Expend. - Care & Upkeep of Grounds
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplies

Total Undizst. Expead, - Care & Upkeep of Grounds

Undist. Expend. - Secority
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Genernl Supplies

Total Undist. Expend. - Security

‘Fotal Undigi. Expend. - Oper. & Maint. Of Plant

Undist, Expend. - Student Transportation Serv.
Sal. For Pup. Trans. (Bet. Hlomoe and School) - Regular
Contracted Services - Ald In Lisu of Payment for Non-TFublie Students
Contract Services {Other than Between Home & School)-Vendors
Contract Services - (Between Home and Sch.) - Joint Agrmts
Conir Serv (Regular Students) - BSCs & CTSAs
Contr Serv {Spl. Ed, Students) - ESCs & CTSAs
Transportation Supplies
Other Objects
Total Undist, Expend. - Student Transportation Serv,

Exhibit C-1

{Unpudited}

Yariance
Final to Actual

Orlginal Budpet Final Favorable
Budpet Transfers Budpet Actual (Unfavorable)
149,080.00 0.00 148,080.00 149,080.00 0.00
2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00
3,500,00 26,095,16 29,595.16 25,146,50 4,448.66
10,750.00 .00 10,750.00 19,750.00 0.00
2,300.00 .00 2,300.00 1,900.00 400,00
7,300.00 (2,956.31) 4,543.69 4,543.69 0.00
2,000.00 (1,850.00) 150,00 150.00 0.00
500.00 (322.04) 177.96 177.96 0.00
6,000,00 (2,183.31) 3,816,649 3,769.46 47.23
3,000.00 (202.00) 2,798.00 242773 370,27
186,830.00 18,581.50 205,411.50 200,145.34 5,266,16
12,548.00 202.00 12,750.00 12,750.00 0,00
12,548.00 202,00 12,750.00 12,150.60 0.00
46,478.00 0.00 46,478.00 46,478.00 0.00
125,00 0,00 125.00 0.00 125.00
250.00 .00 250.00 175.00 75.00
250.00 .00 250.00 225.00 25,00
47,103.00 0.00 47,193.00 46,578.00 225.00
42,000.00 (3,361.89) 38,638.11 26,976.93 11,661.18
0.00 339,44 33944 31800 21.44
1,075.00 0.00 1,075.00 0.00 1,075.00
43,075.00 (3,022.45) 40,052.55 27,294.93 12.151.62
£4,501.00 0.00 84,591.00 77,026.98 7,564,02
11,254.00 0.00 11,254.00 6,397.20 4,856.80
4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00
13,200.00 (500.00) 12,700.00 4,565.44 8,134,56
12,500,00 (6,458.32) 6,041.68 1,284.86 4,756.82
28,857.00 (2,139.56) 26,717.44 26,717.44 0.00
18,000.00 2,054.26 20,054.26 18,365.81 1,688.45
30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 15,064.57 14,935.43
30,000.00 5,000.00 35,000.00 30,624.94 4,375.06
3,000.00 0.00 3,000,00 2,097.00 903.00
235.902.00 6,543.62) 22935838 182,144.24 47,214.14
487500 0.00 4,875.00 311.93 4,563.07
1.550.00 65.00 1,615.00 1,615.00 0.00
1,800.00 (63.00) 1,735.00 740.83 994.17
8,225.00 0.00 8,225.00 2,667,716 5,357.24
2,000,00 0.00 2,000.00 1,135.80 264,20
S00.00 3,022.45 3,522.45 3,522.45 0.00
300.00 1,200.00 1,700.00 1,199.98 500,02
3,000.00 4,222.45 7,222,435 5,858.23 1,364.22
290,202.00 (5,343.62) 284,858.38 217,965.16 66,893.22
20,443,00 17.48 20,460.48 20,460.48 0.00
2,000.00 4,5982,52 6,982.52 533575 1,626.17
0.00 150.00 150,00 150,00 0.00
16,885.00 (3,807.82) £3,077.i8 11,270,18 1,807.00
87,687.00 (8,500.00) 79,187,00 41,784.67 37,402.33
149,964.00 0.00 149,964.00 118,481.60 3148240
500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.60
500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500,00
277,979.00 {7,157.82) 270,821.18 197,502.68 73,318.50
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Exbithit C-F
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
stary Cow) ai Schgdnle

Sengral Fysid
¥ T &
{Unnudized)
Varimer
Finnd 45 Actusl
Origiand Budgel Final Faverable
Badgat Trawslers | Nuidpet Actaal _{Unfevarable
Expenditures {vontinued}
Regubar Programs - Bnatruction - Employee Banofita
Giher Rethement Contributions 7,050,060 8,00 2,050.06 4635 %4 2114.24
Elealth Benefes 28662700 (547595 2BE,151.08 233,662,069 44,088 55
Tuition Refmdbursement 18680000 0.00 16,000.0¢ 18,000,006 0,00
Oflzey Beuployes Busafits 300,050 2.00 40000 0,80 400,05
Lintised Sick Payment to Termsinated Retived Stadl .00 904,00 950000 & .60 0.0
Totat Regular Programe - knstraction 32047200 £5.775.953 314,301,068 26365785 56403 20
Specinl Prograws « Inytraction - Bmployee Benefits
Health Benetits 32463 00 (00 32.463.08 45,3303 Tadsyl
Total Specint Programs = Ingteuetion 52.463.00 Got F2AGL00 43,139.03 12397
Attendanee and Sochsl Work Services - Employes Benefits
Heuftly Bonefits 35,537.60 23,68 35,550.68 3309620 245348
Tota! Attendance and Bocial Wozrk Services 33,537.00 prks 35,355.68 3300620 2463.48
THemih Services - Employeo Benefite
Hoslth Benefiss 3124500 {556.4%) Rt AH 2335322 133428
Fotnt Heulth Serviees 31,246.00 {855.49) 30,680.51 3938522 134 29
Gther Suppérct Serviees - Child Sindy Team - Employes Besslis
Freatth Benofiis 65,822.00 {2.545.26) 56.026.74 S5.644.03 1528271
Total Buppert Bervices « Child Study Team — D ET2.00 {2945 263 66925.74 55.644.03 1128271
Improvaent ol Bssteaction Serviee - Bmployee Benoflis
Peailh Benedits 2744500 506653 32.511.53 2631885 6,392.88
Tofal Inyprovement of Tustrucifon Services 27.445,00 3,066,353 3251183 531865 6,192,838
Support Services - Goaeral Adminkstration - Empleyee Benafiis
Foalth Beneflis 2734R.00 440640 31,754 48 ZEAMLAL 4,333 96
Ciher Employes Bessefiis 3,688.00 000 3 00000 ), 385,80 141020
Taint Support Services - General Admlskivation 30,348.08 446540 34,754.40 25010.24 514418
Opsvstion and Mainfennnce of Plant Services - Employee Beneflts
Henlth Benpfits 12,583 01 050 12,383 00 N5 54138
‘Tuds] Oporntion and Maintcrance of Plant Serviccs 12 583 00 0,00 1258308 £1.000.04 £43 368
TOTAL ALLOCATED BENEFTIS 2057000 AR ST THR 61 454 000 6 85 TER 45
UNALLOUATED BENEFITS
Hoaial Bevarily Contributions 30,000,582 12,355.53 42,3585,53 4;,608.03 M4z
Ciher Rtotirement Contributions « PERS 23,808,00 2.658.03 23.653.03 #3.658.0% 0.00
Unemployment Compaaantion 000 0,00 .00 i 2,00
Wenkrnen's Compensation 2300000 {18030 24 8FLI0 2228103 261785
TOTAL UNALLOCATED RENEFITS - 860000 1491306 5221305 42,5047 76 3.365.30
On-Belall TPAF Pensfan Contributions {(Non-Budgated) 0.50 00 2.00 375,891.08 (375,691.00}
On-Bohalf TRAF Post Retirement Madical Contrib, (Nos-Fadgeted) £.00 .00 4,00 £17,70960 {i117,795.00}
Ow-behalf TPAF LT Insurance Contributions {Non-Budgeted) Lk 0.00 000 38900 £489,00)
Reimbupsed TRPAT Soacial Bevurily Coutributions {Nor-Fadgeted) Qo .00 100 H8.766.7¢ (108,766,703
TOTAL GN-BEHALYF CONTRIBUTIONS 000 GO0 oon  SURE4ST0 {5,045, 703
TOTAL PERSDNAL SERVICLES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS HILITLE0 35 p309Y SIT019T 1187304 32 (514.652.38)
TUTAL UNMSTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 2,900 980 G0 6502508 2967100598 3317.270.67 (35026469
FOTAL GENERAL CUORRENT §£XPENSE 4,442.814.00 £523.47 444833747 4745 000,87 {30, 728.60)
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YON-BY-THE-SFA 0
Batbeetary Comprizon Schedule

Expenditurea (oontinned)

CAFITAL OUTLAY
Equipasenis

Lisdist, Expend. » Instroction
Total Hquipmeat

Fachities Acquisicion & Coustruction Servicess
Assessement for Delit Serviea o DA Funding
Foial Facllities & Construction Services

Trigrest Deposit ta Capital Reserve
TUTAL CAPTTAL QUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Exgess (Deficieney) of Revennas
$ver {Under} Expeaditures

Chor Flnanche Soures (Dseeh:
Cpevating Transfer Ia {Outh
Transfer s Food Service Fund
Transfer fram Caplial Projocts Wuwd io Capltn? Reserve
Totad Other Financlag Seurees {Eses)

FExeess {Deficiency) of Revenues nnd Other Finanelng Soroes
Ower (Undler) Expeadltores aud Other Finpneiag Uses

Fend Balance, July 1
Prier Poriod Adjustmaent
Wi Balaice, July 1 (Roestated)

Fand Balance; June 30

ftecapitulnilon;
Reatriotad Fand Balance:
Ezoess Surplus ~ Dogighated for Subssquent Youe's Bxpenditures
Kigeoss Surnlug - Cherent Yoar
Capital Reserve
Tuition Reserve
Unerzploymant Compensation
Assigoed Fund Balance:
Yeur-ond Enowsilymess
Dissignnied for Sulizeguent Years Bugnditures
Unasgigned Fand Halance

Reconcitiation to Goveramentid Funds Statemonts (GAAR):
Last Two Binto Aid Payment not recopuized an GAAFP besis
Yund Balance per Govermments! Funds (GAAP}

TR

Exbibit -4

Genepy) Pund
Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2031
{Upnudited)
Yarianeg
Final ta Aetual
Qriginal Budged Final Favorabie
Budget ‘Transfers Bedead Astunl itinfavoratied
2360000 1,355.40 34 35540 14.480,40 9,875 (%
F350000 133540 24,3535,4¢ 1443840 FEBTE00
34400 000 3400 34.00 Q.00
54560 8.00 34,00 54,00 G600
46050 000 AG0.00 403 400.00
23454.00 138540 24.30040 14,534,490 13.275.60
4.466,368,60 G378 RT 4.473,146.87 46380047 (290,453,603
(281,554,003 {2.472.87) {281 02687} 13335862 444,423.49
{E3.253.000 a0 {18.253.00) (3,192,773 8,060.23
.00 G.00 Q.08 791450 2,014 50
{IB253.04) 000 (18253 (4} (2,172,27 16074 73
(205,807 () (347287 {305 21.87Y 181 32038 46050000
§,359,184,13 4,00 1,399,189.13 1,399,189.13 0.0
1254061 Goo 17,5461 1754061 jesir]
1.416,729.34 L.00 1416732074 L2672 74 2.60
$1,146522. 74 (39472877 110744587  BIAET05000 $460,500.22
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27064504
27211287
46865131
i14,876.04

1761315

34,7607
41,609.96
31388100
i.367.65069

(18,595,003
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

REVYENUES:
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Total Instruction

Support Services
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Materials & Supplies

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Total Outflows

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures & Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Exhibit C-2

(Unaudited)
Variance
Original Budget Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
57.378.00 50,452,00 107.830.00 91,094.25 16,735.75
57,378.00 50,452.00 107.830.00 91.094.25 16,735.75
15,748.00 26,780.50 42,528.50 29,204.75 13,323,735
30,650.00 (88.00) 30,562.00 30,562,00 00
2.980.00 13,186.50 16,166.50 16,166.50 00
49.378.00 39,879.00 89,257.00 75,933.25 13.323.75
§,000,00 4,787.00 12,787.00 9,375,00 3,412.00
.00 5,786.00 5,786.00 5,786.00 .00
§.000.00 10,573.00 18.573.00 15,161.00 3,412.00
57,378.00 50.,452.00 107,830.00 91,094,25 16,735.75
57,378.00 50.452.00 107.830.00 91,094.25 16.735.75
00 .00 00 00 00
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(Unaudited)

Exhibit C-3

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues

and Expenditures

General Fund Special Revenue Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules 4,916,999.09

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.

Encumbrances, June 30, 2020 00
Encumbrances, June 30, 2021 (.00

State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes. 19,164.00

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the

subsequent year. (18.995.00)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds. 4,917,168.09

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows” from
the budgetary comparison schedule 4,763,600.47

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes.

Encumbrances, June 30, 2020 .00
Encumbrances, June 30, 2021 (.00)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. $4,763.600.47
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91,094.25

91,094.25
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LS

AVONBY-THE-SEA SCHOQL DISTRICT
edufe o1 the Disfrict’s Froj gnate Share of the Net Position Liability - PERS
Last Tan Fiscal Yesrs®
{Unaudited)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

201 20290 2019 2018 2017

Exhibiz I~1

2016 215 2014

District's propartion of fhe nef pension )

tiakihity {asset) G.OEE230504% OANIZEBR9ETA%: 0.0024328503% 000247 34796% 0.0026775532% 0.0020623874% 00020851 744% 0.0026592105%
Districts proportionate share of the net .

pension labitity {asset} & 378820 & 483 608 & 470016 § 575,833 b3 T304 § 463 965 386657 % 515,473
Districls covered-empioyee payroll $200,443 3170458 145,665 3173201 3159675 $147,579 $134487 $171,349
Diswriet’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a porcentage

of its eovered-employee payeoll 187.12% 283, 71% 32885% 332.47% 495.64% 313.71% 287 51% 3N
Plan fiduciury net pesition as a poremtage

of the total pension liabilixy Jocal) 5832% 56.5% 53.60% 48.30% 40.14% 47.53% 5208% 48.72%

* Until & fiull ten vear tend i3 compilad, tnformation will be presented for these years for which mforruation s availabie.



8§

Contractually required contribution 3

Contribution in relation to the
contractually required contribution

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of District's Contribution - PERS
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

{Unaudited)

Public Employees* Retirement System (PERS)

Exhibit L-2

Contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered-employee payroll $

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

2021 2020 2019 ' 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
25,413 26,107 $ 24199 % 22916 § 23,941 $ 17,731 5 17,025 $ 20,338
(25,413) (26,107) (24,199) (22,916) (23.941) (17,731) (17,025} (20,338)
202.448 170,548 S 145,665 3 173,201 b 159675 § 147,579 3 134487 % 171,349
12.55% 1531% 16.61% 13.23% 14.99% 12.01% 12 .66% 11.90%

* Until a full ten year trend is compiled, information will be presented for those years for which information is available.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schednle of the District’s Propoertionate Share of the Met Pensisn Liability - TPAF

Last Ten Fiscal Years*®

Exhibit L3

(Unaudited}
Teachers' Peasion and Annuity Fund {TPAF)
2021 2030 2019 2018 2017 2016 2018 2014
Distriet's propoction of the net pension
liability (assey) ** NA NIA N/A Nia N/A WA N/A N/A
District's proportionste share of the net
pension Hability (asset) ** NA WA WA BA NA WA NA N/A
State's proportionate share of the net
pension Hability {asset) associated
with the District §  8§.R00,035 £ 7650479 7.504.547 3§ 6,706,100 § 9,082,205 7,837.426 6,121,502 6,066,520
Totzd $ 2890033 $ 7630479 7,504,347 % 6,706,100 % 9,082 203 7.637.426 6,121,802 6,066,520
Dismict's covered-smployes payroll b 1,446,805 § 1365415 1,398,636 § 1,369,269 % 1,181,904 1,183,115 1,244,950 1,200,702
Dristricts proporiionate share of the net
pension Hability (asset) as a percentage
of its coversd-employee payroll Nia NA N/A N/A N/A N/A, N/A Nia
Plan fiduciary net position a5 a
percentage of the total pension Hability 24.60% 26.95% 26.48% 25.41% 22.33% 28.71% 33.64% 33.76%

* Until & full ten yeer trond it cotoplied, information will be presented {or those years for which information is availabie.

*% Note: TPAT is a special finding simation as defined by (3ASB Statement No. 68 i which the State of New Jersey is 100% responsible for contribantions to the plan.
Since the District (employer) doss not contribute directly to the plan there is no get pension lability to report In the finsncial seements of the District.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schednle of Changes in District's Proportionate Share of State Total OPER Liability and Related Ratios

State's proportion of the net OFEB
liability (asset) associated with the Distriet

Distriet's proportionate share of the net
QOPEB liability (asset) **

State's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset) associated
with the District

Total

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability (local)

Teotal GPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest Cost

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experiences
Changes of Assumptions

Member Contributions

Gross Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability ~ Beginning
Total OPER Liability - Ending

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

(Unaudited)

2021

0.01%

N/A

§ 8614262
§ 8014262

0.00%

268,713
207,343
982,637

1,573,530

4,546

{149.967)

2,886,802
5,727 460
$ 8614262

$ 1,648,253

6.00%

2020

0.01%

N/A

§ 5727460

8 5727460

0.00%

$254,997
271,095
(1,547,958)
85,397
5212
(175,816)

(1,107,073)

6,834,533

$ 5727460

$ 1,535,963

0.00%

* Until a full ten year trend is compiled, information will be presented for those years for which information is available.

** Note: OPEB is a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 75 in which the State of New Jersey is 100% responsible for coniributions to the plan.

2019

0.01%

N/A

3 6834533

— IS

$§ 6834533

0.00%%

$250,410
243,616
659,302
(784,297
6,316

(182,753}

192,594
6,641,939

——— .

5 6834533

5 1544301

0.060%

Since the Distriet (employer) does not contribute directly to the plan there is no net OPEB liability to repoert in the financial statements of the District.

Exhibit M-1

2018

0.01%

N/A

$ 7,131,853

$ 7,131.853

P L Eobtbot: buiieadi

0.00%

$301,466
209,753

(852,957)
5,663
(133.841)

(489,914)
7,131,853

§ 6,641.939
$ 1,542,500

0.00%%
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL. DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IIT
PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) SCHEDULES
JUNE 30, 2021

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Pension Schedules:
Changes of benefit terms.
There were none,
Changes of assumptions.
The discount rate changed from 5.60% as of June 30, 2019 to 5.40% as of June 30, 2020,
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
Pension Schedules:
Changes of benefit terms.
There were none.
Changes of assumptions.
The discount rate changed from 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 to 7.00% as of June 30, 2020.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

OPEB Schedules:
Changes of benefit terms.,
There were none.
Changes of assumptions.

The discount rate changed from 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 to 2.21% as of June 30, 2020,
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts
or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes,
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REVENUES:
Federal Sources

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:
Sslaries
Other Puschased Services
General Supplies

Total Ingtroction

Support Services:
Purchased Professional and

Technical Services

Bupnlies and Materiafs

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues Over
{Under) Expendinres

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures

Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Revenue Fund

Exhibit £-1

LB.EA. Parth FEvery Student Succeeds Act CARES Act CRRSA Act
Edueation  Corenaviras Eearning
Tide ¥ Titde X{ Title IV Stabilization Retief Acceleration
Basic Preschool Part A Part A PartA Fuod Fund Grant Totals
36.620.00 1.105.00 17.966.23 1.867.00 11.458.00 15,104 00 5.786.00 185.00 91 08425
36622 00 1106.00 1796623 LB87.00 11.458.00 16.104.00 3.786.00 i85.00 21.094.25
&,060.00 110660 17.966.25 L0 4,072.50 A0 08 00 2020475
30,562.00 00 Q0 00 0 00 00 R 30,562.00
K15 0g B0 S0 6250 13,604 .00 Kit .00 16 166,50
36,522 00 110600 17.966.25 .00 4535 00 15.604 00 200 A0 1593325
.00 0 45 1,867.00 6,823.00 506,00 Kl 18500 837500
08 B0 KUt 60 R g 5.786.00 30 5,786 04
ki .00 00 186700 6823 00 3006.00 5,786.60 185.00 15.161.00
35,622 00 110800 17.966.23 1.867.00 11,458 00 16.104.00 378600 18300 91,004 25
% .00 00 00 A8 0 00 B0 00 i




LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

TheLon g—Term Debt Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the general long-term liabilities
of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Long-Ferm Debt

Schedule of Bonds Payable
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Date of Amount of Annuoal Maturities
Issue Issue Issue Date Amount

Monmouth County Improve- June 25, 2015 $3,930,000.00 02012022 240,000.00
ment Authority Governmental 02/01/2023  255,000.00
Pooled Loan Refunding Revenne 02/01/2024  265,000.00
Bonds, Series 2015 02/01/2625  275,000.00
02/01/2026  285.000.00

62/61/2027  300,000.00

02/01/2028 305,000.00

02/12029  315,000.00

D2/012030  330,000.00

02/01/2021  335,000.00

02/01/2032  345,000.00

02/01/2033  360,000.00

02/01/2034  375,000.00

02/01/2035  385,000.00

£2/01/2036

405,000.00

Interest
Rate

Bailunce
July 1, 2028

Exhibit I-1

Balapce

3.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.125%
3.250%
3.250%
3.375%
3.375%
1.500%
3.500%
3.500%

$5.0035.000.00

Issued Retired June 39, 2021

00 23000000 4.775.000.00




Hxhibit 1.3
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budeetary Comparison Sehedule
Debi Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance
Original Budget Final Paositive (Negative)
Budget Transiers Budget Actual Final to Actual
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy 314,383.00 REE 314,383,000  314,383.00 00
State Sources:
Debt Service Aid 94.366.00 R3] 94,366.00 94.366.00 0o
Total Revenues 408.749.00 00 408.749.00  408,749.00 00
EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:
Interest 178,755.00 L0 178,755.00 178,573.70 181.30
Redemption of Principal 230,000,060 ;00 23000000  230,000.00 R
Total Fxpenditures 408,755.00 .00 408.755.00  408,573.70 131.30
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (6.00) .00 {6.00) 17330 181.30
Fund Balance - July 1 6.13 00 6.13 6.13 0
Fund Balance - June 30 3 A3 A0 A3 18143 181.30
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Govemmental Acfivities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets

Business-Type Activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Assels

District Wide
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total District Assets

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sez School District Financial Records

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

Exhibit J-1

UNAUDITED

7012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 980521  $ 1160276  $ 1131517 § 937,007 § 1,244324 § 1316739 § 1346781  § 1436507 § 1498862 § 1560797
752,787 1,072,274 1,476,350 1,688,555 1,914,820 1,968,105 1,575,508 1,187,530 1,085,939 1,153,880
185,515 140,993 122,684 {162,561) (305,949) {369,019) (248,195) (242,657) (325,222) (206,854)
§ 1898823 $ 2373543 5 2730551 § 2464091 § 2,853,195 § 2014925 § 2674004 § 2,381,380 § 2259578 § 2.516.803
$ o £ o ¢ 0 s o ¢ o ¢ 0 3 0 s o o 3 0
0 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 7 7 7 7 8 8 $ 47
$ 0 g 0 T 0 3 7 i 7« 7 % 7t R 8§ 53 47
$ B80S § 1180276  $ 1,131,517  § 937,007 § 1244324 5 1316739 $ 1,346,781 $ 1436507 § 1498862 § 1569797
752,787 1,072,274 1,476,350 1,689,555 1,914,820 1,968,105 1,575,508 1,187,530 1,085,939 1,153,880
165,515 140,993 122,684 (162.554) (305,942) (369,912) (248,188} (242,649) (325,214) (206,807}
$ 1898823 § 2373543 § 2730551 § 2464088 $ 2853202 § 2014932 & 2674101 § 2,381,388 § 5050587 § 2,516,870
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Expenses
Governmenta! Activities
Instruction
Reguiar
Spedcial Education
Other Special Education
Vocafional
Other Instruction
Nonpublic School Programs
Adult/Continuing Education Programs

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services
School Administrative Services
General and Business Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Fupil Transportation
Busingss and Other Support Services

Speciai Schools

Charter Scheels

Interest on long-term debt

Unallocated Degreciation

Unallocated Amortization

Total Governmental Activities Expenses

Business-type Aclivities

Food Service

Child Care
Total Business-Type Activities Expense
Total District Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmentat Activities
Charges for Services
[nstruction (tuition)
Pupil Transportation
Business and Other Suppert Services
Qperating Grants and Centributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-type Activities
Charges for Services
Food Service
Child Care
Operating Granis and Conlributions
Capital Grants and Comiributions
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues
Total District Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Govemnmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total District-Wide Net Expense

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{accrual basis of accounting)

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit J-2

UNAUDITED

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021
1248811 § 1,267,002 $ 1410255 $ 1648277 $  1,B4579¢ § 2,180,792 $ 2310701 § 2275903 § 1,809,358 § 2,019,315
177,370 102,934 o 0 c 0 ¢ ¢ 477,035 572,659
] 0 0 0 8 ] 0 a 0 0
0 0 0 0 v 0 ¢ o 0 0
77,692 111,489 100,780 80,042 104,748 108,249 184,266 146,642 125,063 82,342
0 0 0 0 v ] c 0 ] 0
0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 ¢ 0’ 0 0
914887 $ 851,445 § 722083 % 760,873 $ 804,853 § 802773 $ 942418 § 1,200,140 3 1,104,782 § 964,658
510,006 605,251 589,807 658,583 871,871 717,044 803,028 §32,033 823715 943,240
125,796 38,475 24,422 37,761 14,296 18,351 17,938 17,502 13,757 13,231
148,247 190,689 215,801 245513 294,315 314,666 293,286 295,855 295,905 328,093
221,959 226,575 238,117 251,312 264,727 277,470 254 543 238,848 240,632 235,305
143,806 129,225 132,273 143 455 153,960 166,738 246,052 244,209 212,419 198,892
] 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 0
] 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0
276,991 270,546 263,579 405,202 148,810 216,161 206,194 198,030 187,328 177,076
23,867 61,119 174,817 175,121 174,748 177 470 173,320 170,579 169,772 169,841
2,261 0 o c 0 0 ) Q 0 0
3871633 § 3854760 $ 3871934 3 4407138 3 4478128 $ 4979714 5_ 5431745 $ 5620781 § 5459766 $ 5704750
29771 3 27245 § 27642 § 26564 § 24150 S 26913 & 52,858 § 24505 $ 22,893 § 22,998
0 0 0 i} 0 0 0 0 0 0
29771 27245 27642 26564 . 24150 26913 32858 24595 22893 22998
3501404 $ 3882006 8 3809576 $ 4433703 5 4502278 $ 5006627 $ 5464603 $ 5645376 & 5482659 § 5727748
93,088 3 142255 § 115675 § 127,450 § 135722 § 138,663 $ 106,625 § 105,740 $ 96,950 § 140,290
19,600 7,782 2,504 0 i} 0 0 0 760 446
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o v
0 o o 0 58,758 73,111 72,163 79,943 69,264 91,094
0 o 0 0 0 o 0 0 o ¢
112688 3§ 150,037 § 118,25% 3§ 127150 $ 194490 § 211,774 § 17B73E § 185683 § 166,984 § 231,750
' 9,829 § 6,829 § 7,587 $ 8910 4914 $ 5241 § 7,338 3 9,157 % 8679 $ 2,781
0 0 0 o v} 0 [+} 0 0 0
6,000 4763 7,106 7.255 5,180 7.942 8,248 7.068 4,379 10,979
0 0 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 0
15,829 11,502 14,593 14,156 10,094 13,183 15,586 16,225 13,058 13,760
128517 3§ 161,629 § 132,862 § 141316 § 204,584 § 224957 § 194374 3 201,908 § 180,042 § 245 510
(3,758,945) $  (3,704723) 3 (3,753,685) $ (4,275,989) $ (4,283638) $ (4767.940) $ (5252.857) $ (5435088) $ (5292,782) § (5473000
(13,.942) (15,654} (12,949} (12,398) (14,056) (13,730 (17.272) (8,370) (9,835) (9,238)
(3,772,887) § (3,720377) § (3,766,614) $ (4,292387) § (4297894) $ (4781670) $ (5270229) $ (5443468) $ (5302617) S (5482238)
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General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assels
Govemmental Acthvities
Praparty taxes kyuled for ganensl purposes, net
Taxed Lavied for Debt Servica
Urwesbricted Grants atid Contribulions
Payments In Lisu of Taxes
Invesimsant Eamings
Miscaliznecus Inoomea
Transfers
Fotal Governmentat Activities

Business-Type Activiies
Investment samings
Trareferg

Tetal Business-tvpe Activilies:

Total District Wide

Charyre In Net Asseta
Governmental Activities
Business-Typs Activitios
Tokal Disfrict

Exhinit b2

Souree: Borough of Avonby-the-Sea School District Fi

fomraboued
AVON-BYETHESEA SCHOOL THETRICT
CHANGES (N NET ASSETS
LAZT TEN FISCAL YFARS
{mecnia basis of aocounting)
UNAULHTED
2012 2013 2014 2018 2818 2017 2018 2018 pateil] 2021
& 2,178,083 32788 5 3,288,769 3T 084 3,508,648 5571035 § 3438424 §  JE37142 § 378123 B 3875488
30,0 BABHEG F81,576 230038 F19.912 FH 514 <58 837 315,362, Fie, 878 314,983
577208 514,632 548 547 BG7, 024 £, 030,473 1,138,501 1,778,562 1,28C.322 1,129,508 1,488,400
0 s} 4] 4 1} o O 1] & O
3,993 4,848 6,226 8,058 8487 8403 B8.25% 13,703 11,677 5,743
124£72 18,851 9,488 48228 2,310 4,911 10,102 3,348 B0TF 26,875
{18,808 {15 547 {12 930 {12 %59} 114 040} {13.6894) 17388 - iB.08m, B0 : G183
$ 4,080,823 4178442 § 4 110,668 4,508,073 A BT ABPBET0 § S017084 3 B4pes 3 HATO087 § 8712703
% 38 8 3 kx 48 16 3B 3 80 % 277 % 33 %5 45
13,604 15643 12,830 12,3862 14,050 13,694 17,182 50383 8702 8.193
14 8ed ”Iﬁ?@ﬁ 12.548 12388 14,558 13.730 17,274, 8370 2,835 2238
3 4 103&55 4185108 § A523E15 4. 521 470 4 886 798 4843 400 5034388 § 0 5150748 % S180818 % g ?.”»31i%%
$ 329,878 L4718 $ 357,001 229,083 388,104 BLIH 8 (2ASHTEY 3 {Emnil) 3 (121807 % 239,703
Q Z g 0 4] 1] 1] ] G 1]
b4 329 978 AFATHE 8 357,001 229,083 386 164 61730 % (235873 § (282713) § (1218013 % 238788
fal Records
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Exhibit J-3

UNAUDITED
2012 23 214 20185 2016 2017 2018 2519 2020 2021

Gengral Fund

Resarved b3 0 $ o % 0 s & 3 o 8% G & 0 3 U0 8 0 3 {

Urreserved Q 4] g G g 0 i g G 4]

Restfrictad 708,478 1,063,053 1,467,843 1,881,147 1,883,882 1,937,145 1,568 493 1,180,504 14078,618 1,153,698

Committed : 0 g 0 ' o 0 G 0 0 0 ]

Assigned 34,870 32,87¢ 28,086 38,108 28,130 7ot 136,284 131,528 28,861 100,371

Unagsigned 303,182 259 041 252 198 260,068 240177 235,200 241,043 252,974 272,446 284 BRG
Total General fund $.,1.044398 $ 1354988 § 1745827 § 1079343 § 2153160 $ 2180257 § 1945820 S 1465011 % 1380025 3 _ 1.548855
Al Other Governmental Funids

Reserved % 0 8 G % 0 % ¢ % 0 8 45 D % L1 3 o % 0

Unresarved ] g 0 I O 0 0 4] & 4]

Restricted 8,781 8,405 8407 8407 30,858 30,958 7,014 7.021 7021 184

Comimitied G [E 5] 119,684 [ g 0 Q ] Q

Assigned 38,550 g 0 o 0 [ el 0 D 0

Unassigned { g { 0 4] A} 4] 0 0 0
Total All Other Governmental Funds  $ 46311 & 8405 $ 8407 & 128051 § 30952 § 30988 % 7,014 3 FR I 702 8 181

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Saa School District Financial Records
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN FUND BAL ANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Exhibit j-4

UNAUDITED
2012 2013 2014 2015 20186 2017 2018 2012 2020 2021

Revenues .

Tax Levy § 3,509,084 $ 3,555,654 $ 3,558,345 $ 3,507,114 § 3,625,562 $ 3,691,549 § 3,737,261 § 3,852,504 $ 4,031,101 § 4,189,878

Tuition Charges 93,088 142,256 115,675 127,150 138,722 138,664 106,625 105,740 96,960 140,210

Interest Earnings 3,993 4,948 6,219 8,058 8,855 8,403 8,251 13,703 11,577 6,743

Miscellaneous 32,072 27,633 12,082 49,228 22,092 4,910 10,102 3,949 8,837 26,321

State Sources 491,322 546,505 504,430 557,145 656,574 567,976 584,336 778,208 846,774 962,765

Federal Sources 85,946 68,127 45,113 45,814 58,768 73,111 72,163 79,943 69,264 91,004
Total Revenue 4,215,515 4345123 4,241,864 4,384,509 4,507,373 4,484,613 4,618,738 4,834,047 5,084,513 5,417,011
Expenditures
Instruction

Regular Insfruciion 209,533 859,090 1,195,347 1,253,561 1,307,906 1,483,807 1,545,013 1,531,361 1,301,820 1,355,537

Special Education Instruction 108,822 62,808 0 0 0 0 0 0 363,391 379,328

Other Special Instruction 0 0 0 o o] 0 0 0 0 0

Vocational Education 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 4] aQ

Other Instruction 65,403 75,739 88,822 77,806 92,646 104,994 116,293 124,582 90,111 81,699

Nonpublic Scheol Programs o 0 0 o .0 0 0 0 t] 0

Adult/Continuing Education Programs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Support Services:

Tuition - 914,687 851,445 722,083 760,873 804,853 802,773 842 418 1,200,140 1,104,782 964,656

Student & Instruction Related Services 391,081 480,736 536,078 523,937 566,717 523,671 609,040 597,326 627,488 649,554

School Administrative Services 99,533 26,895 14,800 15,124 13,770 15,762 14,610 14,929 12,242 12,750

General and Business Administrative Services 122,831 161,728 199,971 221,452 225,057 218,634 242 864 243712 254,892 276,034

Plant Operations and Maintenance 198,472 200,497 235,415 248,431 236,102 254,501 247,223 230,248 235,613 228,705

Pupil Transporiation 139,676 127,068 131,677 142,811 153,518 165,312 245,012 242,102 209,574 197,503

Employee Benefits 589,062 691,496 282,667 323,143 359,273 381,488 475,233 553,160 620,055 693,393
Special Schools 0 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 0 0
Bond Issuance Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 20,334 91,496 54 22,670 248,860 81,714 3,989 59,128 10,254 14,534
Debt Service:

Principal 150,000 155,000 165,000 170,000 270,000 195,000 205,000 210,000 220,000 230,000

Interest and Other Charges 279,123 272,748 266,160 410,089 137,937 216,075 208,275 200,069 189,575 178,574
Total Expenditures 3,988,857 4,056,746 3,838,074 4,169,897 4416639 4,443,831 4,854,970 5,208,757 5,239,797 5,263,268
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over (under) expenditures 226,858 288,377 403,790 214,612 90,734 40,782 (236,232) {372,710} (175,284} 153,743
Other Financing Sources

Proceeds from borrowing 0 0 0 o G s} o 0 o] 0

Proceeds from refunding Q 0 0 150,941 o 0 0 4] 0 0

Capital Leases 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 v 0

Transfers [n 59 35 0 0 0 0 ) 0 0 0

Transfers Qut {13,963) {15,678) {12,930} {12,352) {14,041) {13,694} {17,192) (8.093) (9.702) {9,183)
Total Other Financing Sources (uses) {13,904) {15,643) {12,930} 138,589 (14,041) (13,694) (17,192) (8,083) (9,702) {9,193}
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 212,054 § 272734 § 390860 $ 353201 § 76693 $ 27088 § (253424 § (380,803) § (184.986) § 144550
Debt Service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures 12.12% 12.08% 12.66% 16.26% 10.85% 10.40% 9.31% 8.66% 8.50% 8.44%

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea Schooel District Financial Records
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Exhibit J-5

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Interest on Rentals-Use Prior Year Transportation
Ending June 30, Investments Tuition of Facilities Refunds Fees QOther Total

2012 4,111 94,850 2,030 3,065 19,600 7,437 131,093
2013 4,948 142,256 1,960 4,536 7,782 13,3565 174,837
2014 6,217 115,675 1,050 0 2,594 7,038 132,574
2015 8,058 127,150 2,030 972 0 46,226 184,436
2016 8,437 135,722 2,170 0 0 14,976 161,305
2017 8,403 138,664 0 0 0 4,910 151,977
2018 8,250 106,625 2,170 1,118 0 6,814 124,977
2019 13,703 105,740 1,750 0 760 1,440 123,393
2020 11,577 96,960 0 760 8,077 117,374
2021 6,743 140,210 0 15,813 446 10,062 173,274

$ 80,447 $ 1,203,852 § 13,160 $ 25504 3 31,942 $§ 120336 $ 1,475,240

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District Financial Records




- AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Exhibit J-6

LAST TEN YEARS
UNAUDITED
Total Tax- Total Direct Estimated Actual
Year Ended Vacant Farm Assessed Exempt Public Net Valuation School Tax (County Equalized
December 31, Land Residential Reg. Qfarm Commercial _ Industrial _Aparment Value Property Utilites Taxable Rate Value)

2012 13,707,200 919,312,000 -0- - 41,544,300 2,303,600° 8,680,900 985,548,000 -0- 213,813 985,761,913 0.361 1,004,137,632
2013 . 15,262,000 904,021,200 -0- -0- 41,014,500 2,303,600 8,680,900 971,312,200 -0- -0- 971,312,200 0.366 1,003,919,731
2014 12,831,900 904,028,400 0- -0- 40,657,000 2,303,600 6,952,400 966,673,000 -0- -0- 966,673,000 0.372 989,936,508
2015 15,582,400 871,218,800 -0- -0- 39,198,000 2253200 6,766,200 935,018,600 -0- -0- 935,018,600 0.388 982,675,771
2016 14,970,400 847,808,700 0 G- 35,581,900 1,835,700 6,594,800 908,791,500 -0- -0- 506,791,500 0.407 981,337,741
2017 12,762,400 856,721,200 -0- -0- 35,681,900 1,835,700 6,594,800 913,496,000 0 -0- 913,456,000 0.409 982,652,254
2018 12,127,500 865,062,600 -0- -0- 35,381,900 1,835,700 86,594,800 921,002,500 -0 -0- 821,002,500 0.418 999,894,148
2019 14,588,900 §72,305,100 0- -0- 32,816,100 1,835,700 6,594,800 928,140,600 -0- -0- 528,140,600 0.434 1,045,556 607
2020 14,224,000 &76,201,100 -0- -0- 32,388,900 1,835,700 6,594,800 931,244,500 -0- -0- 931,244,500 0.450 1,109,681,244

"*_\4 2021. 13,907,200 879,647,200 -0- -0- 32,388,900 1,835,700 6,594,800 934,373,800 -0- -0- 934,373,800 0.457 1,206,421,950

Source: Abstract of Ratables, County Board of Taxation.



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS

(rate per $100.00 of assessed valuation)

UNAUDITED

Avon-by-the-Sea School District Dirrect Rate

Overlapping Rates

General ‘
Year Ended Obligation Debt Total Borough of
December 31, Basic Rate Service Direct Avon-by-the-Sea
2012 0.324 0.037 0,361 0.374
2013 0.335 0.037 0.366 0.374
2014 0.335 0.037 0.372 0.393
2015 0.335 0.053 0.388 0.413
2016 0.342 0.065 0.407 0.428
2017 0.349 0.060 0.409 0.428
2018, 0.359 0.059 0.418 0.424
2019 0.377 0.057 0.434 0.425
2020 0.393 0.057 0.450 0.430
2021 0.400 0.057 0.457 0.430

Source: Municipal Tax Collector and School Business Administrator

72

Monmouth
County

0.286
0.283
0.304
0.308
0.307
0.300
0.308
0.308
0.320
0.338

Exhibit J-7

Total Direct
and
Overlapping

Tax Rate

1.021
1.033
1.069
1.109
1.142
1.137
1.148
1.165
1.200
1.225



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO

Exhibit J-8

UNADUITED
2021 2018
Taxable As a Percentage Taxable As a Percentage
Assessed of District's Net Assessed of District's Net
Taxpayer Value Rank  Assessed Valugtion Value Rank  Assessed Valuation:
Individual Taxpayer #1 4,324,500 1 0.46%
Avon Hotel Corp. 3,693,700 2 0.39% 3,766,000 1 0.46%
Individual Taxpayer #2 3,062,800 3 0.33%
Individual Taxpayer #3 3,017,500 4 0.32% 3,177,300 2 0.34%
Individual Taxpayer #4 2958300 & 0.32% 3,100,100 4 0.33%
Individual Taxpayer #5 2,792,000 6 0.30%
Individual Taxpayer#6 2,781,400 7 0.30% 2,736,000 & 0.29%
Individual Taxpayer #7 2,671,600 8 0.29% 2,607,100 7 0.28%
individual Taxpayer #8 2596400 9 0.28%
individual Taxpayer #9 2,548,700 10 0.27%
Total $30,347,900 3.26% $15,377,400 1.64%

Source: Municipal Tax Collector
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal
Year of the Levy

Exhibit J-9

Collections in
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal year Amount of Tax Levy Years
2012 3,179,083.00 3,179,083.00 100.00% -0-
2013 3,226,769.00 3,226,769.00 100.00% -0-
2014 3,226,769.00 3,226,769.00 100.00% -0-
2015 3,587,114.00 3,597,114.00 100.00% -0~
20186 3,625,562.00 3,625,562.00 100.00% -0-
2017 3,691,549.00 3,691,549.00 100.00% -0-
2018 3,737,261.00 3.425,822.51 91.67% 311,438
2019 3,877,407.16 3,5656,365.16 91.72% 321,042
2020 4,031,101.00 4,031,101.00 100.00% -0~
2021 4,189,878.00 3,840,721.50 91.67% -0-

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District records. including the Certificate and Report
of School Taxes {(A4F form).
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Exhibit J-10

UNAUDITED
Business-Type
Governmental Activities Activities

Fiscal Bond o 5 o

Year General Certificates Anficipation Percentage of

Ended ~ Obligation of Capital Notes Capital Personal

June 30, Bonds Participation Leases (BANs) Leases Total District Income Per Capita

2012 6,395,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,395,000 0.99% 62,996
2013 6,240,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,240,000 1.02% 63,662
2014 6.075,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,075,000 1.10% 67,069
2015 6,105,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,105,000 1.15% 70,231
2018 5,835,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 5,835,000 1.25% 73,071
2017 5,640,000 -0- ‘ -0- -0- -0- 5,640,000 1.35% 75,916
2018 5,435,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 5,435,000 1.46% 79,471
2019 5,225,000 -0- -0- . -0- -0- 5,225,000 1.58% . 82,551
2020 5,005,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 5,005,000 Not Available Not Available
2021 4,775,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 4,775,000 Not Available Not Available

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District records



Exhibit J-11
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOQL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISGAL YEARS
{dollars in thousands, except per capita)

UNAUDITED
Percentage of
General Net General Actual Taxable
Fiscal Year Obligation Bonded Debt Value of
Ended Juns 30, Bonds Deductions Quisltanding Property Per Capiia
2012 8,395,000 6,395,000 652,006
2013 8,240,000 8,240,000 €3,862
2044 8,075,000 6,075,000 67,069
2015 6,105,000 8,105,000 70,231
2016 5,835,000 5,835,000 73,071
2017 5,840,000 5,640,000 75,916
2018 5,435,000 5,435,000 79,471
2019 5,225,000 5,225,000 82,551
2020 5005000 5,005,000 ( Nat Avallable
2021 4,775,000 4,775,000 Not Avallable

Source: Borough of Avoniy-the-Sea School District records
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Exhibit J-12

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

UNAUDITED
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable Debt
Governmental Unit
Debt repaid with property taxes
Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea $ 11,922,525 100.000% $ 11,922,525
Monmouth County General Obligation Debt 456,517,569 0.800% 4,048,380
Other debt 0.00 0
Subtotal, overlapping debt 15,970,905
Avon-by-the-Sea School District Direct Debt 4,775,000

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

$ 20,745,905.00

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the
Monmouth County Board of Taxation; debt outstanding data provided by each

each governmental unit.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal year 2021

Exhibit J-13

Equalized Valuation Basis

2018
2018
2080

Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Property

Debt Limit (3% of Average Equalizaiion Value)

1.0387.515,489
1,105,982,602

_3,345,879,627

1,1156,283,208

33,458,796

Net Bonded School Debt 4,775,000

Legal Debt Margin 28,683,796

2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Debt Limgt $  30286,05¢ 18,800,073 19,710,860 28872396 29707124 295688,773 23,638,841 30,281,030 31,352,645 33,458,796

Total net debt applicable to fimit 395000 6240000 5075000 6203810 5835000 5640000 5435000 5225000 5005000 4,775,000

Legal debt margin $ _ 23801064 136080073 13035960 22578580 23872124 23946773 24203841 250566,030 26,347,545 28 683,798
Total net debt applicable to the limit .

as a percentage of debt limit 21.1% 31.3% 30.8% 21.8% 19.6% 18.1% 18.3% 17.3% 18.0% 14.3%



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Monmouth
County
Personal Monmouth
Income - County
{thousands of Per Capita
Year Population dollars) Income
2012 1,919 38,660,420 - 62,996
2013 1,911 39,607,080 _ 63,662
2014 1,798 41,544,287 67,069
2015 1,790 43,773,134 70,231
2016 1,786 45,283,381 73,071
2017 1,782 47,223,653 75,916
2018 1778 49,308,331 79,471
2019 1786 51,082,169 82,551
2020 1783 53,238,207 Nof Available
2021 Not Available Not Available Not Available
Sources:  Data regarding Unemployment Rate was given by the New Jersey

Department of Labor,

Data regarding Personal Income was given by the New Jersey
Department of Labor.

Data regarding Per Capita Income was given by the New Jersey
Department of Labor.

Data regarding School District was given by United States Census Bureau,
Census 2000.
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Unemployment
Rate

8.60
9.40
5.90
4.30
4,40
4,10
3.60
2.90
7.60
Not Available



Exblbit J-15
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Currant Year and Nine years Ago

UNAUDITED
2021 2012
Parcentage of Parcentage of
Employer Employess Rank  Total Employment . Employees Rank  Total Employment

This is not available within the community,
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Exhibit J-18
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Function/Program
. 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Instruction . . .
Regular 9.4 10.2 8.7 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 11.0 11.0
Special Education 3.7 338 34 2.8 23 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
Other Special Education 2.0 1.0 1.0 20 2.0
Vocational
Other Instruction 4.8 51 4.9 52 4.6 47 37 3.7 3.7 3.7
Nenpublic school programs
Adult/continuing education programs
Support Services:
Student & instruction related services 1.4 1.4 1.4 33 34 4.0 4.0 43 4.3 4.3
School administrative services 14 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 16
General and business adminisirative services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Plant operations and maintenance 2.0 20 2.0 2.0 20 20 2.0 20 20 20
Pupil transportation 0.9 0.9 09 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9
Business and other support services 16 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Special Schools
Food Service 0.5 05 g5 05 0.5 05 05 0.5 0.5 0.5
Child Care
Total

28.7 27.9 26.0 28.9 284 32.3 30.3 30.6 32.6 326

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District Personnel recerds
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

Exhibit J-17

_ Pupil/Teacher Ratio Average Average % Change
. Daily Daily in Average Student
Operating Cost Per Percentage  Teaching Enrollment  Attendance Daity Attendance
Fiscal Year Enrollment Expenditures Pupil Change Staif Elementary Middle {ADE) (ADA) Enrolimsnt Percentage

2012 162 3,539,200 21,847 7.77% 18 17:1 18:1 155.9 150.6 -2.39% 96.60%
2013 165 3,537,502 21,439 -1.87% 18 18:1 20:1 162.5 155.2 2.96% 95.51%
2014 162 3,373,331 20,823 -2.87% 18 18:1 20:1 160.2 153.1 -1.37% 95.57%
2015 163 3,653,361 22,413 7.64% 18 21:1 20:1 155.0 150.0 -2.07% 96.77%
2016 161 3,759,842 23,353 4.19% 17 16:1 16:1 148.0 140.3 -6.89% 96.14%
2017 168 3,951,042 23,518 0.71% 19 16:1 17:1 1458 139.5 -0.62% 95.63%
2018 168 4,437,706 26,494 12.65% 18 16:1 17:1 147.0 139.7 0.14% 95.00%
2019 163 4,737,560 28,085 9.70% 18 131 14:1 136.2 1314 -6.27% 96.49%
2020 150 4,819,968 32,133 10.56% 19 14:1 14:1 122.5 119.7 -9.78% 97.71%
2021 133 5,047,160 37,949 18.10% 19 12:1 131 130.¢ 126.5 5.38% 96.64%

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District records
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Distrigt Building 2012 2013 2014 2018 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 20214
Avon Elsmentary Schoal (1504)
Square Feet 27,398 27,383 27,383 27,383 27,393 27,383 27,3483 27383 2¢.393 27,303
Capacily {students) 280 250 250 250 250 250 250 280 250 250
Enroliment 2012 185 182 163 161 2017 188 163 150 133

Number of Schools &t June 30, 2021
Elementary/Middie School = 1

Sourse: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea Schoo! District records

Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses. Enroliment is based on the annual

October district count.



Exhibit J-19
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2021

UNAUDITED
UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-xxx

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, Avon Elementary School Total
2012 56,907 58,907
2013 58,328 58,328
2014 44,908 44 908
2015 62,423 62,423
2016 61,502 61,502
2017 45127 45127
2018 50,927 50,927
2019 33,561 33,561
2020 42,930 42,930
2021 27,295 27,205

$ 483,908 3 483,908

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6:24-1.3)

Source; Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District records
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

June 30, 2021

UNAUDITED

School Package Policy ~ NJ School Board
Property - Blanket Building and Contents
Extra Expense
Valuable Papers & Records
Non-Owned and Hired Business
Auto Policy
Boiler and Machinery
Electronic Data Processing
General Liability

Umbrelia Liability - NJ School Board

School District Legal Liabiiity - NJ School Board

Employer Liability - NJ School Board

Worker's Compensation - NJ School Board

Student Accident

Public Employees' Faithful Performance Bond -
Selective

Treasurer
Public Official

Coverage

$ 11,350,337,221
50,000,000
10,000,000
1,000,000
100,000,000
405,000
1,000,000
6,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
Statutory

1,000,000

175,000
2,000

Source: Borough of Avon-by-the-Sea School District records
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Deductible

1,000
1,000
1,000

1,000
1,000
1,000
1,000
1,000

5,000

1,000
500
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ALVINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
110 Fortunato Place
Neptune, New Jersey 07753-3767
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Exhibit K-1

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Avon-By-The-Sea Board of Education
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the agpregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Avon-By-The-Sea School District, in the
County of Monmouth (the “District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated February 23, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control,

Adeficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by
the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the result
of that testing, and for New Jersey Department of Education use, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

(8 Lpa et

Allen B, Shechter
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 2183
Certified Public Accountant

February 23, 2022
Neptune, New Jersey
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Exhibit K-2

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Avon-By-The-Sea Board of Education
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Board of Education of the Avon-By-The-Sea School Distriot’s (the “District”) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and New Jersey State Aid/Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major state programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The District’s major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major state programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial andits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; auditrequirements
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; the audit requirements of Title
2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid”. 'Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey
OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program,
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and petforming our audit of compliance, we
considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we donot express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that matetial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results that the testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

27
Allen B. Shechter
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 2183
Certified Public Accountant
February 23, 2022
Neptune, New Jersey
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Exhibit K-3

Schedale A
AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHGOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021
Ealance at June 38, 2020 Balance at June 30, 2021
Federal Federal Grant or Stete  Program or Carcyove Repayment
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Granter/ CFDA EAIN Project Award Grant Period Accomnts  Unearned Duetw  (Walkaver) Cash Budgetary of Prier Years'  Accounts Unearned Daoe to
_Program Title Number Number Number Amount From To Recsivable _Revenue _ Gremor  __Amount Received Expendicmes = Adjusments _ Balances Recivable Revenne _ Grantor
U.S. Department of Education
Passed-through Staie Department of Education
Special Revenne Fund:
Spesial Edusation Cluster:
LD.EA Part B, Basic 84.027 HO27A200100 IDEA-018021 36622.00 070120 0930721 36,622.00 (36,622.00)
LD E A Part B, Preschool 84027 HOZ7A200100 IDEA-0130-21 L106.00 Q7401720 09730721 1,106,00 (£.196.00)
Total Special Education Cluster 37.728.00 (37.728.00)
Flementary and Secondary Education Act
Tile L. Patt A 24,010 S010A200030 ESEA-0IS0-21 28,0000 070120 0930421 11.003.00 (17.956.25) (6.963.25)
Title I, Part A 84.0l0  B0L0AIS0030 ESEA-0IS0-20 22147.00 0701119 093020 (141772 L417.72
Tide L Parr A 843674 S36TA200029 ESEA0130-2] 2852.00 970120 09430721 467.00 (1.867.00) {1400.00)
Tile IV, Part A 844244 B424A200031 ESEA-0I80-21 13984.00 0701220 (973021 3.820.00 (9.658.00) {3,833.00)
Title IV, Pait A 84.424A S424A190031 ESEA-0180-20 1117200 070119  09/30/20 (800.00) 2.600.00 (1.300.00)
Total Elementary and Secondary Education Act (2.217.73) 19307.72 (31.291.25) {14.201.25)
CARES Act Elemeniary and Secondery School Emergency Relief Fund ACRRSA Act
Education Stabilization Fumd 84425 S425D200027 N/A 1610400 031320 0930722 16.104.00 (16.104.90)
Coronavims Relief Grant §4.425  §425D200027 N/A 578600 03/13720 0913022 35,786.00 (5.786.00)
Learning Acceleration Grant 84425 84235D200027 Nia 25.00000 03713720 (0930723 (135.00) {185.00)
Total CARES Act El ¥ and Secondary School E: v Relief Fund /CRRSA Act 21.330.00 (22.075.06) {185.00)
Total Special Revenee Fund 2217.72) 78.925.72 (51.094.25) (14.386.25)
U.S, Department of Agricalture
Passed-through State Department of Education
Enterprise Fund:
‘Natioral School Lunch Program - SSO 10555 20INIS04N1099 NA 10,26324 070120 06/30/21 9,062,82 (10.263.24) (1.200.42)
National $ghool Lymch Program - S50 10.555 191NI304N1099 NIA 121079 03718720 06/30/20 (336,14} 336.14
HHFKA - Pexformance Based - S50 10.355 ZOINJ304NI099 N/A 20468 070120  0&3021 180.74 (204.68) (23.94)
O HHFKA - Performance Based - $50 10555 1SINJ304NI0D NA 2471 0371820 06530420 (6.26) 6.36
‘Total Entetyprise Fund (343.00) 9.536.56 (10.467.52) (1.22436)
Total Federal Financial Awards ﬁlSﬂ!JZ] $88.512.2% ($101,562.17) ($15,610.61)

Note; Federz! Single Auditis not requived

The aecommanying Notes to Schedlos of Expenditures of Awsrds and Finsncial

integral part of U




1o

Eshiihit Xe

Seheduke B
AVONBYTRE S84 SCEODY, DISTRICT
PRI o GE Stte B 3 p o
Tor e Foral Year ended Tuns 38, 2021
Balyoonae Fume 50, 7020 Balanen at dnne B 2027 MEMO
Adfinsmsty’ Liwaeosl
Grankor Presgram ot Timoaennd. Carcypves? Pasvesun! Owabutiee
Suane Progast Aved S Pordosd Bevaraer Tt (Walkoves: Lot Budgetary  fPiorYems  fMvounts | Inscfund Dusdo Budgetary kgt
Srup Granwor/Progrmin Tite Nugulesr Avantor From Ie {Bons Bawivebley  Gognln Amennt | Remsved  Espenditues | Halanecs _Bechaier Davable | U Recoivable | Evpendioeres
State Depuartent of Education
Grenera) Foao:
Saee Akt Pulilies Cluster:
SBegurity Ald frd BB b 1662280 49 [ | H4,622.50 (16,6220 " 157500 1655200
Sywrind Sebncation Canpwianl ARl 2495054512000 155,956,400 forestyiy CHBREL 1951800 | (19916 00y fal X o RspE R 1Y)
Tooted Sipzeis A3E - Pebile i 1353000 (TR SIR00) ¥ k232,00 13653800
“Transportytion ASd 21-495-0345120-01% 53,5630 GTAOL2% e 6396500 H3.963.000 n 6,060.00 A3 86508
Txtrardinary Speciai Séncation Costs Ajd A PAE-5120-045 G330 BT WAL 60,7300y 150,335.01) " E0EIRG0
Exmaordinury Spedal Bdueatios Tosts Aid S ¥34:3320-044 Lk Lobl fl Q&I £40,085.00) 40,086 5 *
Reimbersnd Nompbifi: Schoa! Tommsponition Cess Ald FERS{ES 12001 8.0 GTRRGS [l:iziortd £3.542.801 {58000 ~ S442.00
5 d Mowpublie Sehoet Tornapocition Cews: Aid ORI STI0L T 1i%400 QTN 06/30/20 4,534,00} 1,334.00 *
O Belmif THAF Funalon Consribations i BI04 D0E SHRSTO0 WA 630021 AFLRGLOR  @TS85100 * 373,351.00
O Belul{ THAF Poar Retiresient Medsea! Coztr. 2142303 3658001 182,799.00 [exivetras] =" liny ] HEe00 (HI7,7599 003 * HTNO00
Qn Behalf {PAF Long-Tamn Disability fnsvrmee 21-495-024-3004004 382.00 DI iyl R Ao 900 * /R0
Fennbigsed TPAF Sorial Secacfty Cornibutions. 2-495-034-5094-90% 18976670 G028 06736021 24024 (HELIE6TM {AREERG) - IRGTGE T
Ruimbiresed TRAF Social Seeurity Conuibutions 2D49I-034-5004063 10208452 GIO19 DRG0 4008730 1.908.73 *
Kol General Fand At Rk I | ) {60 3oty Bk O REG. 255 0
‘Pebt Barvice Fands
Deor Sevice At Type I 21ARIARG F120.017 84,366.00 OTL CHGE021 94 366.00 {94 56650} ' 2438600
State Depsotment of Agricaitune
Eaterprise Faud:
Heiant Schoot Lanch Srogram (St Shexe) 23-180-010-3350.02% htick G010 V63RAE L2eEors 108N {8720 * s1083
Padense] Sehoot Lisch Progeney Stew Shar} 26.220010-33 50023 pLCE I 6 g L deiors) V) #3508 33,69 N
“Forel Eterorist Fund g o AEBTC _ (SIOKM _ (GOAN WD . 945
atst State Fioassial Assistance (651D SR SUGI0TH SN (648507 " SIE90R0 39310653
Less:
On Bekeik, Agsiunsaon Mot Incladed fin Stas Kingle Aud- Mafor Progras Deteralnedion y
Om Behalf TRAF Pension Contributions ITIISLN0
On Behalf TPAF Post Retresens Metical Contr, LET A
On Behall TPAF Long-Tesrs DHsabiBey Imenrmancs . peon
Tetat $tose Pinancial Assistance Srlijest fo St Sigle Andit - Major Propram Deemination (S8g Ay 55y

af s Aeanbe e Finsacind ARt art i eyl gert o e wioduti,



Exhibit K-35
AVON-BY.-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance
June 36, 2021

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal and state
award activity of the Board of Education, Avon-By-The-Sea School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note
I to the Board basic {inancial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies,
as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance,

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of
accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the acorual basis
of accounting, These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the Board’s basic financial statements. The
infotmation in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regidations
Part 200 - Uniform Administraiive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federdal Gronts, State Grants and
State Aid”. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements,

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis, Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the andit year,
whereas for GAAP roporting, revenue is net recognized until the subsequent vear or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified acerual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.5 .4,
[8A:22-44.2, For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the subsegquent budget year due to the state deferral
and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and
also recoguizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last
two state aid payments in the current budget vear, consistent with N.J 8.4, 18A:22-4,2.

The net adfustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($169.00) for the general fund and $.00
for the special revenue fund. See Note A for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of
accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and [inancial assistance revenues are reported in the
Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Feders] Staie Tatal
General Fund 00 868,598.70 868,398.70
Special Revenue Fund 01,094.25 00 91,094.23
Debt Service A0 94,336.00 94,336.00
Food Service Fund 10,467 .92 510.83 10.978.75
Total Awards & Financial Assistance $101,362.17 963,245, 53 1.064,807.70
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Exhibit K-5

AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance
June 30,2621

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported iu the related federal and state financial
reports.

NOTES. OTHER INFORMATION

The amount reported as TPAY Pension, Post-Retirement Medical and LTD Insurance Contributions represents amount
paid by the state on behalf of the District for the vear ended June 30, 2021, TPAF Social Security Contributions represents
the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the
vear ended June 30, 2021,

NOTE 6. ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS - STATE SINGLE AUDIT MAJOR PROGRAM DETERMINATION
On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension, Post-Retirement Medical and L'TD Insurance Contributions payments are
excluded from the caleulation for State single audit major program determination. The Schedule of State Financial

Assistance provides a reconciliation of State Financial assistance reported in the District’s basic financial statements and
the amount subject to State single audit major program determination.

NOTE 7. ADJUSTMENTS

The District had to increase prior vear state accounts receivable in the Enterprise Fund for additional state aid received
from the National School Lunch Progtam. The increase in aid received is reflected in the adjustments column on the
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance.

NOTE 8. DE MINIMUS INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed vader the Uniform Guidance.
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AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued;
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness identified?
2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

FEIN Number(s)

N/A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: [518]

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

94

N/A

Unmodified
yes
yes
yes

N/A__ yes

_N/A__yes

N/A
N/A__ yes

yes

Exhibit K-6

X no

X none reported

X no

_N/A_no

N/A__ none reported

_N/A_ no

Name of Federal
Program or Cluster

N/A
N/A
N/A  no



AYON-BY-THE-SFA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (cont’d)

State Awards
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs: $ 750.000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? . X yes

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness identified? yes

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? _ yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Ay audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter 15-08 as applicable? yes

Identification of major programs:

X

State/Grant Project Number{s) Name of Sitate Program
State Aid Public Cluster
21-495.034-5120-084 Secyrity Aid
21-493-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
21-495-034-5120-017 Diebt Service Aid Type 1l

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section HI - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

Federal Awards
N/A
State Financial Assistance

None

95

Exhibit K-6

noe

no

none reported

no



AVON-BY-THE-SEA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial Statement Findings

No prior year findings.

Federal Awards

N/A - No prior year Federal Single Audit.

State Financial Assistance

No prior year findings,
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